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M ore than a decade ago, in 2010, KCPF’s founders articulated its 
purpose: “to provide professional support in influencing the 
development of a legal and social environment that is supportive
of Biblical Values.” 

Each passing year, we have striven to make this a reality. This past year how-
ever, we, like everyone else, were faced by the unprecedented challenge of 
COVID 19 Pandemic. I believe that this will go down as one of the most unique 
years in our history. We have seen how fragile our lives are. We have also 
witnessed the precariousness of our institutions.

While COVID-19 continues to cause devastating disruption and indelible 
changes to the global economy more than a year into the pandemic, it has 
forced remarkable ingenuity, innovation, re-invention and re-thinking of our 
operations and organizational culture. In the middle of the pandemic, we 
launched KCPF Version 2.0 initiatives. These initiatives have brought new hori-
zons to our Five areas of thematic focus, i.e.; Protection of Life, Promotion of 
the Family, Values-Based Education, Religious Freedom and Good Gover-
nance. They have helped us to clarify our unique focus for each programme 
and keep track of our achievements. I am happy to report that these initia-
tives have helped us bounce back even stronger, despite what seemed like an 
insurmountable challenge-a Global Pandemic. 

As the Chairman, during one of the most peculiar times of our history, I am 
grateful to have been surrounded by a wonderful Board of Directors, a com-
mitted Advisory Council, an indefatigable team of Committee Conveners & 
Co-Conveners, a dedicated Secretariat team, and loyal partners & members of 
KCPF. 

Thank you to all of you for continuing to hold on to our shared vision for 
impact and growth.  While in many instances we were unable to meet physi-
cally, you have been there in countless virtual sessions, navigating through 
these unchartered waters, and as a result, our performance this past year has 
been satisfactory. 
In this coming year of 2021/2022, we look forward to another challenging 
twelve months for KCPF, due to both the impacts of the Covid-19 pandemic 
and the fragile, unexpected, and fluctuating political and social factors in our 
country. However, with the amazing capability, determination and dedication 
of all of us, guided by our mission and core values, I am confident that 
2021/2022 will be yet another year of steady, sustainable forward progress. 

For this next period, our focus is; 
1. Membership Expansion; via 3 C's framework: Counties, Country and
    Continent.
2. Programmatic Approach of our thematic focus areas: Life, Family, Religion,
    Education & Governance.
3. Evidence-based initiatives, including:

a) State of Life, Family & Faith Report
b) Journal of Family, Law & Religion 
c) Family & Faith Resources Centre
d) National Survey on issues affecting KCPF. 
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4.Advancement of Membership-based 
programmes, including:

a) Christian Law Clubs & other University/
     College Student Chapters.
b) Christian Counselling & Dispute Resolution
     Centre.
c) Young Christian Professionals Forum by
     KCPF. 
d) A Virtual Call Centre to assist families in
    crisis.
e) Monthly Programmatic Webinars and
    Professional Roundtable Webinars.

For the past 10 years, our focus has been advocacy 
initiatives carried out at the national level. For the 
next decade, we are adopting a fresh membership 
mechanism that we believe will be instrumental in 
advancing our thematic goals in our spheres of influ-
ence. One key thing to note is our intention to have 
KCPF recognized as a professional body. To achieve 
this, we are in talks with various institutions of 
higher learning to have our members go through a 
certified Leadership Course that will encompass 
counselling. Our nation needs good leaders from 
the family level to the national level. We believe that 
by going through the training, we’ll enable our 
members to be champions of Christ centered lead-
ership in the society. We encourage you to consider 
taking the course and together let’s transform our 
society to the level we all desire. 
In the 3C’s framework to expand our membership 
we’ve started initiatives to establish regional/coun-
ty chapters across the country. This will expand our 
reach and influence to all corners of our republic. 
We encourage all members in different regions to 
be our champions and lead in the establishment of 
the said chapters. We also launched the Africa Chris-
tian Professionals Forum (ACPF) that will cover the 
entire continent. People from different countries, 
such as Namibia, Nigeria, Uganda, Burundi and Ethi-
opia have already developed interest in establishing 
a Christian Professionals Forum in their mother 
countries under the ACPF banner. We invite all Chris-
tian Professionals across the Globe to join this great 
movement.  Our goal is to eventually form World 
Christian Professionals Forum (WCPF), an ecumeni-
cal forum bringing together Christian professionals 
from all over the globe. 

Finally, in the Book of Matthew 9:38 the Bible says, 
"The harvest is plentiful but the workers are few.” 
There’s still more work to be done and this work 
requires the support of each one of us. Let us join 
forces and work for our Lord. If all Christian profes-
sionals would actively influence their circles, our 
society would be greatly impacted and the nation 
be transformed for the better. 
On behalf of the Board of Directors, I would like to 
thank all our members and partner organizations 
for your undying trust and support. In closing, we 
wish you protection from COVID-19, and blessings 
upon yourselves and your families and the nation, so 
that we can continue to move forward together.

God Bless Kenya.
God Bless KCPF.
God Bless you. 
CHARLES KANJAMA

CHAIRMAN 
 

In the middle of the pandemic, we 
launched KCPF Version 2.0 initiatives. These 

initiatives have brought new horizons to 
our Five areas of thematic focus, i.e.; 

Protection of Life, Promotion of the Family, 
Values-Based Education, Religious Freedom 

and Good Governance.

“

“
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As noted in the Chairman’s statement, KCPF’s inge-
nuity and re-invention during the COVID 19 period 
led to the launch of KCPF Version 2.0 initiatives. At 
the Secretariat level, our task has been to imple-
ment these initiatives. This far, I can report that the 
initiatives have enabled us to refine and resource 
KCPF’s work. 
Under the initiatives, we are glad to have brought 
together a strong and dedicated team to serve in 
our Advisory Council. For the few months they have 
been serving, we have benefitted immensely from 
their wealth of wisdom and experience. We have 
also instituted two KCPF students’ chapters in 
universities. Our evidence-based initiatives are all on 
course, as well as an upcoming Christian Counselling 
and Disputes Resolution Centre. Through our virtual 
Call Centre, we have been able to assist more than 
40 women and girls in crisis pregnancies. We have 
also been consistently hosting webinars and so far, 
we have had 18 of them. We have had several media 
engagements as well as litigation and advocacy 
initiatives. Despite COVID -19, we have gone ahead 
with all our flagship events, albeit virtually or in 
hybrid forms. We have and continue to revamp and 
multiply our stakeholder and membership engage-
ments. 
Earlier this year, we retreated to review the accom-
plishments under our Strategic Plan 2018-2022, as 
we look forward to the next five-year period. From 
that meeting, we sharpened our focus for our Five 
Programmes as follows; 
On Life Programme, our focus is on Putting Man at 
the center of Life matters. For long pregnancy and 
childbirth has been relegated to the woman, as 
KCPF, we are focusing on calling out man to be at 
the center rather than the periphery of the conver-
sations. 
On Family Programme, our focus is Mainstreaming 
the Centrality of The Family, our immediate task is to 
see to it that the cabinet ascends to the Draft Family 
Policy as well as work on more Legislation geared 
towards promotion and protection of the family. On 
Religion programme our focus is now in Profiling 
the Dangers and Threats to Our Faith. While Educa-
tion programme, we plan to focus on advocating for 
and promoting Faith and values in the Education 
Sector. Finally, in Governance & Leadership 
programme, we will be focusing on Promoting 
Servant Leadership. 

For all the five Programmes, we will use the 
following modes of delivery; 
• Knowledge Generation.
•Policy.
• Advocacy; networking, training, marches,
   conferences, symposium.
• Litigation.
• Resourcing.
• Member-centered; membership development
    and welfare. 

VINCENT K. KIMOSOP

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

 

FOREWORD 
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BACKGROUND

Kenya Christian Professionals Forum (KCPF) brings together Christian professionals from various 
denominations sharing common values on Life, Family, Values-Based Education, Religion and 
Governance; which are our pillars. Our major partners are Kenya Conference of Catholic Bishops 
(KCCB); National Council of Churches of Kenya (NCCK); and Evangelical Alliance of Kenya (EAK). 
The campaign for the referendum on the New Constitution in 2010 provided an opportunity for 
the Church Leadership and Christian Professionals to collaborate in formulating the Christian 
position on contentious issues contained in the new Constitution of Kenya 2010. By providing 
their expertise in civic education, the Christian Professionals partnered with the Church Leaders 
in articulating the position of the church regarding matters Religion, Life, Family, Education and 
Governance. 
It is on this backdrop that the Christian Professionals from all disciplines, denominations and 
counties came together through KCPF to provide sustainable support to churches to influence 
the legal, social and religious environment of our society so that it reflects Kingdom Values. 
Christian Professionals are very interested on influencing and participating in the implementa-
tion of the Constitution of Kenya 2010, national laws and policies revolving around Life, Family, 
Religion and Governance.

A wholesome and 
productive society that 
upholds biblical values.

To promote and defend 
biblical values in society 

through re-search, 
advocacy, mentorship 

and witnessing.

Accountability
Professionalism
Courage
Integrity
Stewardship

VALUES
• Accountability: being responsible and transparent in our actions, conduct and management of our
    resources. 
• Professionalism: adherence to standards, conducts, methods, levels of excellence and competence
    that is expected of a professional. 
• Courage: being bold, steadfast, firm and consistent about our Cristian faith and doctrinal basis and
    standing for what is right. 
• Integrity: commitment to virtuous, moral, ethical and biblical principles for the good of all.
    It includes having honesty, truthfulness, consistency and moral character both in private and public
     life. 
• Stewardship: prudent management of people, resources, finances, talents and skills
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ADVISORY COUNCIL
• Mrs. Anne Mbugua: Senior Partner, Musyimi and Company Advocates. 
• Bishop Alfred Kipkoech Arap Rotich: Bishop of Kericho, Roman Catholic Church, Kenya. 
• Bishop Rev. Joel M. Waweru: Bishop, Nairobi Diocese, Anglican Church of Kenya. 
• Mrs. Catherine Musakali: LL. B, LL.M, FCPSK, ACIrb, Dorion Associates.
• Dr. George Njenga: Executive Dean, Strathmore University Business School (SBS).
• Dr. Duncan Ojwang: Dean of School, Africa Nazarene University Law School. 
• Hon. Jeniffer Shamala: Member of National Assembly, Parliament of Kenya.
• Bishop Kepha Omae; Presiding Bishop of the Redeemed Gospel Church Inc. 
• Mr. Joseph Ogutu; Chief Special Projects Officer, Safaricom Ltd.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
• Mr. Charles Kanjama - Chairperson 
• Mrs. Alice Wainaina - Vice Chairperson
• Mr. Vincent Kimosop - Executive Director 
• Mr. Daniel Muiruri - Treasurer 
• Dr. Daniel Kiura - Director 
• Dr. Linda Ochola -Director
• Mrs. Margaret Nyagah - KCCB Representative 
• Mr. Antony Ngachira - NCCK Representative 
• Dr. Eliud Nthega - EAK Representative

CONVENERS OF COMMITEES
• Dr. Wahome Ngare – Life Committee 
• Canon Peter Gachuhi - Family Committee 
• Ms. Aketch Aimba - Family Committee
• Mr. Lucas Owako - Religion Committee 
• Mr. Peter Mbuchi - Education Committee 
• Mr. Gerald Walterfang - Governance Committee
• Mr. Chrispine Otieno - Governance Committee
• Mrs. Winnie Kambora - Welfare Committee 
• Mrs. Monica Matiri - Media Committee
• Mr. David Kuria- Media Committee

SECRETARIAT
• Mrs. Patience Muthenya -Programmes Manager 
• Mr. Daniel Nyagah - Programmes Officer 
• Miss. Naomi Wekesa- Programmes Officer 
• Mr. Raphael Alwora - Assistant Finance and Admin Officer 
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KCPF 
THEMATIC AREAS 

Guided by Article 26(1) of the Constitution of Kenya 
we believe that every person has the right to life 
and inherent dignity. Further to that, Article 26(2) 
adds that “The life of a person begins at concep-
tion.” In recognition of these articles and the 
mission of Jesus in John 10:10 (…. I have come so 
that they may have life and have it in abundance) 
KCPF continues to uphold the Sanctity of Human 
Life. In line with our belief that life begins at 
conception and ends at natural death, the Life 
Committee works in collaboration with other 
pro-life organizations under Linda Uhai Consortium 
to promote and protect human life and dignity.

1. PROTECTING THE RIGHT TO LIFE; 

Article 45 of the Constitution of Kenya is clear that 
the family institution is a fundamental unit of soci-
ety and shall enjoy state recognition and protec-
tion. On this basis KCPF has taken upon itself to 
protect, defend and support legislation that 
protects this natural fundamental unit, the Family. 
In order to be more effective and productive, KCPF 
works with other organizations, including Govern-
ment of Kenya’s Ministry of Labour and Social 
Protection, which share the same interests in the 
matters of family to form the National Family Con-
sortium.

2. FAMILY DEVELOPMENT;

Article 32(2) of the Kenyan Constitution mentions 
that, “Every person has the right, either individually 
or in community with others, in public or in private, 
to manifest any religion or belief through worship, 
practice, teaching or observance, including obser-
vance of a day of worship.”  KCPF believes in the 
unity of all Christians regardless of their denomina-
tion. This is in compliance with Jesus’ prayer in 
John 17:21.

3. RELIGIOUS FREEDOM; 

Chapter 6 of the Constitution acknowledges Lead-
ership and Integrity, a very virtual aspect in gover-
nance. Article 10 (2) outlines National Values and 
Principles of Governance that bind all persons in 
the interpretation, development and implementa-
tion of public policy decisions in the country. KCPF 
through the Governance Committee continues to 
be on the forefront in championing effective imple-
mentation (spirit & letter) of Chapter 6, in order to 
promote good governance and servant leadership.

5. GOVERNANCE & LEADERSHIP; 

Article 43 of the Constitution of Kenya enriches 
Social and economic rights, including the right to 
education. Details on the protection of the human 
person during childhood are spelled out in article 
53. By anchoring itself in the available constitution-
al frameworks, this Committee will claim and devel-
op its space as a formidable agent of social trans-
formation from the perspective the Christian faith 
in modern society. The vision of the committee is 
to influence the education sector with Values 
Based Education while its mission is to make a com-
pelling case to the education practitioners and 
education departments and stakeholders on the 
values imperative so as to cause changes in belief, 
attitudes, behaviour and ethos that reflect shared 
values.

4. VALUES-BASED EDUCATION;
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PROGRAMME DEPARTMENT REPORT

VERSION 2.0 INITIATIVES

1. KCPF STUDENT CHAPTERS ASSOCIATION

The purpose of KCPF’s Student Chapters is to promote the inculcation 
of Christian values and ethics in Christian students in institutions of 
higher learning. 
KCPF intends to engage students in legal, policy and governance 
issues, and to replicate KCPF’s programmes into models that work for 
students. This will help to increase the breadth of and multiply our 
impact as well as prepare the next generation to take up KCPF’s work. 
The students will be able to tap into ideas and leverage on the knowl-
edge generated by KCPF for the last decade. Students meet regularly 
to transact the following; Scanning of the situation in their campus on 
areas of life, family and religion, organizing forums/seminars for 
educating fellow students on KCPF thematic areas and organizing 
Life marches and Family days on campus. 
KCPF, in collaboration has so far launched, a Christian Law Club in 
Catholic University of East Africa and a Christian Legal Society in 
Africa Nazarene University. 

2. KCPF JOURNAL, MAGAZINE AND NEWSLETTER

a. The Africa Journal on Life, Family and Religion (AJLFR)

The Journal on Life, Family & Religion will be publishing contributions dealing with (1) Life (2) 
Family and (3) Religion, with a special focus on topics of relevance to Christians. Principally, AJLFR 
intends to stimulate scholarly research into the three areas of Research, Apologetic and Services 
to protection of life, family and religion in Kenya. 
It is published under the auspices of the KCPF Journal Team. The Journal is published twice in a 
year, in April and November.
The editorial committee on this Journal is made up of a network of Christian scholars, practi-
tioners and academicians. They are responsible for receiving and reviewing submissions for publi-
cation. 
The committee comprises of the following members:

a) Dr Duncan Ojwang; 
     Dean of Africa Nazarene School of Law.
b) Dr Roseline Olumbe;
     Assistant Coordinator, Institute of Child Development – Daystar University Lecturer, Child
     Development.
c) Dr Mary Thamari Odhiambo;
    Specialist in Gender, Policy and Development and Country Director, Life in Abundance 
    International. 
d) Dr Eric Kibet; 
     Assistant Professor of Business Law at the Chandaria School of Business, USIU. 
e) Prof Gilbert Ojwang;
     Associate Professor in the Department of Religion and Theology, Oakwood University,  
     Alabama USA. 
f) Dr John Joseph Wamwara;
    Lecturer in Legal research and writing, Moi University school of Law. 

Figure 1; From L to R; Evans Muiruri, Chairperson Christian Law 
Club CUEA, Patience Muthenya and Yuri Kipleting of KCPF 

Secretariat
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PROGRAMME DEPARTMENT REPORT

VERSION 2.0 INITIATIVES

b. KCPF Magazine

The Kenya Christian Professionals Magazine, will be published quarterly. It will be focusing on the 
Christian Professional’s life under our thematic areas. 

This magazine is a collection of trenchant, in-depth analysis and dissection of contemporary issues 
of concern to KCPF and its members. It features a collection of articles, events’ reports- capturing 
events by KCPF and partner organizations, it also captures upcoming initiatives, reporters and 
features writers. 

Through this magazine, we are providing a bold Christian voice on issues affecting our country and 
continent. We also intend to use this magazine as a platform to set and shape the Christian Agenda, 
which is part of our mandate of providing professional support in influencing the development of a 
legal and social environment that is supportive of Biblical Values. 

We will do this by promulgating and disseminating relevant information which will educate our audi-
ences as well as affect the opinion climate amidst our audiences. Our goal is to form, change and 
reinforce opinions of KCPF’s importance by communicating ideas, policies and opinions which influ-
ence our society. We also aim at motivating members of our audiences to initiate actions as well as 
processes, in their individual and corporate circles, which sway the opinion climate to that of values 
commensurate with our Christian Beliefs. 

KCPF Secretariat welcomes articles and advertisement for consideration in our next edition-these 
should be submitted to info@kcpf.or.ke 

c. KCPF Weekly Newsletter

Since September 2020, KCPF has been disseminating a Weekly Newsletter dubbed, ‘KCPF 
Updates’. It has proved to be a cost-effective medium for building and strengthening relationships 
with our stakeholders as well as maintaining regular contact with them.

The Weekly KCPF Update typically contains important news and updates to make our audiences 
aware of our events, initiatives and other significant information. We also embed helpful links, such 
as websites of our partner organizations, useful articles and upcoming events by other organiza-
tions. 

The Newsletter has been beneficial and has often motivated many of our constituents to take 
action in issues affecting our nation. It has also opened the doors to increased and better under-
standing and knowledge of our organization and activities. 

The secretariat welcomes all you to subscribe to the Newsletter. 

AGM 2020 - 2021
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PROGRAMME DEPARTMENT REPORT

VERSION 2.0 INITIATIVES

3. CHRISTIAN COUNSELLING & DISPUTES RESOLUTION CENTRE (CCDRC)

The CCDRC, is a counseling and dispute resolution center, tailored to Christian Professionals and all 
who profess the Christian Faith, first, as a conflict and dispute resolution center, employing the 
alternative dispute resolution space and secondly, a counseling center in Family, Education and Life 
thematic areas of focus of KCPF.
Alternative Dispute Resolution (ADR) in Kenya is fast picking up with the newly introduced ADR 
Policy developed by the Judiciary and the Nairobi Center for International Arbitration, 2019, and 
the launch of the ADR Policy in Kenya by the Chief Justice. 
The increased need for ADR in Kenya is partly due to the low level of penetration of ADR mecha-
nisms in the country.
Counseling, as a mental health and depression relief program is one that is anchored in the good-
will, trust and professionalism of experts in this field, that sets out the maximum effect of its 
establishment. 
Kenya Christian Professionals forum has a wide resource of professionals in the health, legal, 
religious and governance sectors in equal measure. This places it in an advantageous position to 
establish and run a compound body of professional Counselors and dispute resolution experts, 
with an aim of furthering access to counseling and dispute resolution in Kenya.
The main Objective of launching the CCDRC is to strengthen the statistical capacities of Alternative 
Dispute Resolution policies and mental health development agenda in Kenya, in developing and 
sustaining its legal capacities to design and implement rights-based conciliation, professional 
counseling and dispute resolution programmes. We also aim to address, care of an independent 
judiciary and underutilized ADR mechanisms in local and urban areas; Counseling, Conciliation, 
Mediation and Negotiation impacts on conflict and dispute resolution in the Kenya. 

4. CALL CENTRE

KCPF is intervening to help vulnerable women in 
crisis pregnancies, through a Call Centre. 
The Centre is designed as a solution for people seek-
ing crisis pregnancy counseling who would prefer 
hearing from the perspective of a Christian.

Since its inception, we have fielded about 50 distress 
calls. The callers’ first contact with the Call Centre is 
usually one filled with fear of the unknown, and 
overwhelming thoughts pushing them to broken-
ness, hopelessness and poverty. 
We have a list of 10 trained counsellors on call from 
5:00am to 10:00pm, Mondays to Saturdays. When a distress call comes in, the counselor’s first inter-
vention is listening actively and to let the caller know that their life journey is not yet over, as, with 
all of us, God is always working in us both to will and to act according to His good pleasure.
Call Centre targets women and girls in crisis pregnancies, it has however evolved in to taking care of 
many issues affecting the family. 

AGM 2020 - 2021



10

PROGRAMME DEPARTMENT REPORT

VERSION 2.0 INITIATIVES

5. FAMILY AND FAITH RESOURCE CENTRE (FFRC)

KCPF’s FFRC contains a wide range of materials and resources of benefit to Christian Professionals 
and the Church at large. We collect and organize learning materials in the form of; training manuals, 
books, reference books, directories, leaflets, newsletters, journals and other audiovisual materials. 
Provision of information is a key way of providing professional support and influencing opinion, 
which is in line with KCPF’s mandate. The resource center helps Christian professionals who are 
interested in Witnessing, Advocacy, Research and Networking- our approaches, to understand the 
context of the work, know and follow new approaches, undertake the responsibility from a point of 
knowledge as well as improve their practice and stay on top of their game. 
So far, we have an online FFRC which is available on our website (https://kcpf.or.ke/fami-
ly-and-faith-resources-centre/ ), the site is still under construction. 

In the wake of the unprecedented violence, a new constitution seemed like the singular tool towards 
a much-needed national transformation. However, the Kenyan Church leadership felt that the draft 
document was “so directly against Christianity”. Thus, the Church leadership lobbied its members to 
vote against the ratification of the new constitution. The leaders and Christian professionals raised 
several issues of contention in the then draft constitution.  
70% of Kenyans voted ‘Yes’ to the new constitution. Thereafter the 
church and Christian professionals resolved to support, influence and 
participate the implementation of the Constitution. KCPF has worked 
to particularly influence laws and policies revolving around Life, 
Family, Religion, Value-Based Education and Governance.
Recently, the country has seen fresh calls and a clamour for a referen-
dum, to amend the constitution. It is against this backdrop that KCPF 
seeks to find out the current stance of Kenyans, and their level of 
concern on the issues that had been raised by the church in its ‘NO’ 
Campaign and vote in the Constitutional Referendum 2010.
The justification is that there are many things that have happened 
since the Constitution was promulgated in 2010.  However, on matters 
that directly touch on the issues of faith in the governance space, the 
following events stand out:

6. NATIONAL SURVEY ON ISSUES OF KCPF THEMATIC FOCUS

KCPF, in collaboration with partner organizations, 
undertakes an annual survey on issues of our thematic 
focus. The promulgation of the new Kenyan constitu-
tion in 2010 was believed to be the answer to the 
various issues that have bedeviled our country. It came 
two years after the nation’s worst post-election 
violence (2007/8 post-election violence). The nation 
was deeply and freshly wounded from the violence 
which led to the loss of hundreds of lives, displacement 
of thousands of families and destruction of property 
worth millions of dollars. This was the tipping point of 
Kenya’s 45 years of misrule. 
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PROGRAMME DEPARTMENT REPORT

VERSION 2.0 INITIATIVES

A Petition seeking the recognition of access to pregnancy termination medical services as part of 
the right to healthcare was filed in 2015 (Petition 266 of 2015: Federation of Women Lawyers (Fida 
– Kenya) & 3 others v Attorney General & 2 others; East Africa Center for Law & Justice & 6 others 
(Interested Party) & Women’s Link Worldwide & 2 others (Amicus Curiae) [2019] eKLR)

 A Petition on the right to association for persons who fall under the LGBTIQ community was filed 
in 2015. (Petition no 440 of 2015: EG v Non- Governmental Organisations Co-ordination Board & 4 
others [2015] eKLR)

Two Petitions seeking the striking down of Sections 162 and 165 of the Penal Code was filed in 
2016 (Pet no 150 of 2016 which was consolidated with Petition no 234 of 2016: EG & 7 others v 
Attorney General; DKM & 9 others (Interested Parties); Katiba Institute & another (Amicus 
Curiae)

The courts have also had many occasions to handle matters touching on leadership and integrity 
Vis a Vis election to public office. However, in this regard, it appears there is little certainty as to 
the position the law should take where a person offering themselves to public office is alleged to 
have violated the chapter on leadership and integrity. Decidedly, this matter is a hot potato 
owing to the far-reaching political ramifications that may be triggered by a plain reading and 
implementation of Chapter 6 of the 2010 Constitution.

With respect to corruption, the courts appear to be finding consensus that persons charged 
under the Anti-corruption and Economic Crimes Act (ACECA) must step aside.

The issues of intersex persons have also received judicial consideration and the liberal jurispru-
dence that is being borrowed from the global north and South Africa may mean that the assault 
against the family- one of the key pillars of KCPF.

The August 2020 National Survey, spearheaded by 
KCPF sought to find out the stance of Kenyans on the 
following issues. 
*  Article 10: National values and principles.
*  Article 26: Right to life (Legalization of Abortion)
*  Article 33: Freedom of Expression (Legalization
   of  Homosexuality)
*  Article 24 (1): Limitation of rights
*  Chapter 6: Leadership & Integrity
*  Teenage sex/pregnancy. 
*   New Constitution of Kenya at 10. (2010 to 2020)
* Comprehensive Sexuality Education (CSE) & 
    LGBTQ issues. 

AGM 2020 - 2021
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It emerged that;  
Only 37% of Kenyans support the recent calls to have the 2010 Con-
stitution amended. About 38% of Kenyans across the country have 
not even heard of the recent calls to amend the Constitution. 
Among those who support constitutional amendments, the most 
popular amendments proposed are in areas touching on imple-
mentation of devolution and distribution of resources (37%) & 
change in leadership or government structure (30%). 

There is an inordinately large number of teenage pregnancies in 
Kenya, and the cause is inordinately high sexual activity among 
minors. From our survey, over 90% of the respondents believe 
that parents have the primary responsibility for carrying out sex 
education of their children. We urged parents and guardians to 
spend quality time with their children and share the right informa-
tion at the right time, place and context to help support good and 
moral behaviour and also address the scourge of teenage sex and 
pregnancies. 

We further observed that Comprehensive Sexuality Education 
(CSE) will not cure inordinate level of sexual activity among 
minors. CSE harms children by using explicit content to promote 
value-free non-judgmental sexual behaviour. In contrast, accept-
able curricula for our children in both primary and secondary 
schools, similar to the Life Skills curriculum set up by the Kenya 
Institute of Curriculum Development (KICD), can help to supple-
ment the principal role of parents in providing values-based sex 
education. 

85% of Kenyans are against the legalization of abortion in all 
instances. A further 9% of Kenyans also reject abortion on request, 
but would allow abortion in some cases like to protect a mother’s 
life. Article 26 of the Constitution of Kenya affirms that every 
person has the right to life from the moment of conception – this 
life is entitled to protection. 

90% of Kenyans are against the legalization of homosexual 
behaviour. 85% of Kenyans believe that homosexual behaviour is 
something that people learn as they grow up. Article 45 of the 
Constitution of Kenya affirms that marriage is for two adult 
persons of the opposite sex. 

National Survey 2021 will focus on the 
following issues; 
Number of abortions in Kenya annual-
ly. 

a) Prevalence of Medabon 
    (Mifepristone and Misoprostol) use 
in
     Kenya.

b) Secondary research on Kenya 
     Demographic and Health Survey
    (KDHS) datasets on issues like infant
     & maternal mortality, abortion, etc. 

c) Prevalence of LGBT practice. 

d) Opinion survey of healthcare
    workers on abortion attitudes           
experiences.We are seeking for 
    organizations/individuals to partner 
    with us and make this survey a
     success. 

AGM 2020 - 2021
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7. MONTHLY WEBINAR SERIES AND PROFESSIONALS ROUND TABLES
One of the ways KCPF has re-invented itself during this COVID 19 Pandemic period is through a series 
on Monthly webinar series and digital professional round tables. This has helped to build a stronger, 
more engaged community through the regular digital meetings. 
Each month, we offer two, two-hour long webinar on topics of key interest to Christian Professionals 
in formal and nonformal settings that are intended to help raise the bar on the quality of our engage-
ments. 
Each webinar features an internal or external speaker, insights into new ideas, and, occasionally, the 
opportunity for us to have deeper discussions on a specific topic or research area.
Registration is free, webinars are streamed via Zoom, and video recordings are made available for later 
viewing on KCPF’s Facebook and YouTube Pages. 
We offer two types of webinars:  

Be sure to look out for and join us for the series of our expert-led webinars as we share insights to 
help you empower innovation and productivity in your professional life. During the webinars, our 
panel of experts will be able to answer all your enquiries.
So far, since last AGM, we have held the following webinars;  

Monthly Programme Based Webinars
are generally held on the second Thursday 
each month from 5:30pm to 7:00pm East 
African time, with some �exibility based on 
speaker availability. This cover a wife range of 
topics based on our thematic areas of focus. 

Professional Round Table Webinars
generally highlight timely topics and/or 
engage users of particular issue of concern by 
bringing together a panel of professionals in a 
‘round table’ discussion. They are generally 
held on the fourth Thursday, each month 
from 5:30pm to 7:00pm East African time, 
with some flexibility based on speaker avail-
ability

- Unpacking the Reproductive 
Healthcare Bill 2019

- Counties’ Perspectives on 
Teenage Pregnancy in Kenya

- Teen Sex and Pregnancy 

- Harmful Media Content, 
Children and Covid-19

Life & Family Programmes
Webinars

Aligning Education to 
Integral Personal and Social 
Development- a Post 
Covid-19 Challenge and 
Response Scenarios

Values-Based education
Programme Webinars - Emerging Dynamics on  

   Religious
   Freedom
- Faith, Religion and The 
  Constitution At 10
- That All may be One; Fostering
   Unity of Purpose amidst
   diversity 

Religious Freedom Programme 
Webinars  

AGM 2020 - 2021
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- Unpacking the No Vote by the Church during 2010 Referendum
- The 2/3rd Gender Rule & CJ Advisory-To Dissolve Parliament or Not
- Negative Ethnicity- National Cohesion and the Constitution At 10
- The Constitution & the Next Decade: Role of the Christian Professional in Promoting
  and Defending It
- The BBI Report & The Church; To Oppose or To Approve.
- Understanding the Kenyan Public Debt Crisis
- The Kenyan Divides: Distilling the Facts of Socio-economic Inequalities in Kenya
- BBI: Opportunity or Threat. 
- Public Borrowing and Corruption. 
- Dissecting the BBI Judgement 

Good Governance Programme Webinars

8. ANNUAL STATE OF LIFE; FAMILY & FAITH REPORT (LFFR)  

Family is the foundation of society and the nation.  It is the building block, and without family, there can 
be no society and nation. As a unit of society, the meaning of family is often taken for granted. Yet its 
definition is often contested and becomes elusive especially when considered in different cultural 
contexts.  Research has shown that divorce and family breakdown is a leading factor that lead to youth 
being lured into criminal gangs.  This is because often gangs provide a sense of belonging to vulnerable 
youth, a function that the family should ideally perform.  The absence of fathers in families and the 
diminishing of male-centred family set ups is a significant contributor to compromised character forma-
tion among children. (Schwartz 2006).  For instance, children of absent fathers have been shown to 
face a higher risk of suffering cognitive, social, emotional, and psychological adjustment challenges.  
Similarly, they face a greater risk for of delinquency and negative sexual behaviors (Allen & Daly, 2002). 
Similarly, studies have shown that family breakdown is a leading risk factor contributing to mental 
health problems.  In other words, children who experience family breakdown are face an increased risk 
of developing serious mental health challenges than those who grown up in stable families. (Amato and 
Keith, 1991)

In Kenya, the situation is similar, if not graver in certain instances.  For instance, studies have shown that 
family breakdown is a leading cause of academic underperformance and a host of other problems 
among children.  (Ngina 2018).  Family breakdown and the resulting instability is a leading cause of juve-
nile delinquency (Thuku, 2017), and is leading contributor to poverty among children and women.  Quick 
conversations with children in trouble with the law and the ever-growing number of street children in 
Kenya easily confirm these research outcomes.     

AGM 2020 - 2021
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For this next period, our focus is; 
1. Membership Expansion; via 3 C's framework: Counties, Country and
    Continent.
2. Programmatic Approach of our thematic focus areas: Life, Family, Religion,
    Education & Governance.
3. Evidence-based initiatives, including:

a) State of Life, Family & Faith Report
b) Journal of Family, Law & Religion 
c) Family & Faith Resources Centre
d) National Survey on issues affecting KCPF. 
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Continued ...
The converse of these negative situations is true.  Family stability and healthy family situations generally 
improve the wellbeing of children, promotes good psychological and social development, and signifi-
cantly improve future economic and family success prospects among individuals (Anderson 2014).    The 
presence of both parents fulfilling their roles responsibly is a significant contributor to the overall devel-
opment of individual character and self-esteem and the ability to have stable family relationships in the 
future.  These outcomes are significant.  The upshot of these statistics is that family stability can no 
longer be viewed an issue of private concern. They are issues of social justice and significant contribu-
tors or threats to socio-economic stability of nation.  In other words, many of social challenges such as 
crime, juvenile delinquency, domestic violence, and child poverty can be addressed effectively through 
fostering family stability.  As such, the Church, communities and the state ought to give family more 
attention as a way of securing socio-economic stability since family instability is a root cause of many 
socio-economic problems.  (CSJ 2006)

According to God’s design, family is supposed to be a source of comfort and support for the human 
person.  According to the scriptures, it ought to be a place where love, encouragement, care and com-
mitment by every member to others abound.   
The idea of family has attracted the attention of law and policy both at a domestic and international 
level.  Adopted by the United Nations General Assembly in 1948, the Universal Declaration of Human 
Rights (UDHR) is a revered document in human rights discourses as it is considered the foundational 
basis of the modern notion of human rights.  Article 16 of the UDHR underscores the right of every adult 
to marry and found a family based on free consent.  Similarly, the UDHR requires assurance of the well-
being of the individual and the family as well as the protection of the rights of children.  These key 
protections on marriage and family subsequently found protection under International Convention on 
Civil and Political Rights (ICCPR).  While the UDHR is foundational and aspirational, the ICCPR at articles 
23 and 24 creates legal obligation on states to take legal, administrative and policy measures to protect 
marriage and family. 

Kenya is a party to the ICCPR.  As such, it has a legal obligation to protect the family.  In this regard, 
article 45 of the Constitution of Kenya makes specific provisions about family.  

45 (1) 
The family is the natural and fundamental unit of society and the necessary basis of social order, and 
shall enjoy the recognition and protection of the State.

45 (2) 
Every adult has the right to marry a person of the opposite sex, based on the free consent of the parties. 

45(3)
Parties to a marriage are entitled to equal rights at the time of the marriage, during the marriage and at 
the dissolution of the marriage.
 
45(4) 
Parliament shall enact legislation that recognises— (a) marriages concluded under any tradition, or 
system of religious, personal or family law; and (b) any system of personal and family law under any 
tradition, or adhered to by persons professing a particular religion, to the extent that any such marriag-
es or systems of law are consistent with this Constitution

AGM 2020 - 2021



16

PROGRAMME DEPARTMENT REPORT

VERSION 2.0 INITIATIVES
8.1 THREATS TO FAMILY
• Family breakdown, Divorce and Teenage Pregnancies  
• Domestic Violence 
• Momentum on Same Sex Marriages and Unions

8.2 KCPF IN DEFENCE OF THE FAMILY
Through the family committee, KCPF has been on the 
forefront championing family.  It has done this through 
the promotion of family values, uncovering the LGBT 
agenda as a compromise of the family institution, engag-
ing in strategic litigation and through rewarding institu-
tions that promote family values.  In this regard, for 
instance, KCPF was enjoined as an interested party in 
the case of EG & 7 others v Attorney General; DKM & 9 
others (Interested Parties); Katiba Institute & another 
(Amicus Curiae) (HC Petition 160 of 2016).  In this case, 
the petitioner wanted sections 162(a), 162(c) and 165 of 
the Penal Code declared unconstitutional on grounds of 
violating the right to privacy, equality and dignity of gay 
people.  These sections criminalise homosexual 
conduct.  While dismissing the petition, the court noted 
that these provisions do not offend the Constitution.  In 
so opining, the court invoked article 45 (2) which protect 
the right of persons of opposite sex to marry.  Although 
the issue of marriage was not in issue, the court invoked 
the marriage design as per article 45 (2) as a basis for 
decision, thus affirming the heterosexual model of mar-
riage that the Constitution prescribes. 

8.3 WHAT NEEDS TO BE DONE 
It is evident that family is critical in the socio-economic 
development of the society and the nation.  While this is 
true, it is appalling that not much effort and resources is 
committed to supporting family.  It is surprising that 
while important groups such as children, women and 
youth have received significant attention in policy and 
government action towards their empowerment, there 
are no similar efforts towards supporting progress and 
stability of families.  
The prevailing (and future) socio-economic challenges 
will continue to put pressure on the family.  The threats 
identified above will continue to grow.  Thus, deliberate 
action needs to be taken to secure the stability of family.  
As already mentioned, instability in family means insta-
bility in the society at large.  The converse is also true.  
Family stability contributes significantly to social stabili-
ty.  The implication of this is that family welfare is not 
just a matter of private concern, it is also public, and the 
state ought to be involved.  
 

As a result, the following needs to be done in this 
regard:
(a) Engage the government to adopt policies and 
action to support families in accordance with article 
45(1) of the Constitution. Article 45 (1) provides thus: 
“the family is the natural and fundamental unit of 
society and the necessary basis of social order, and 
shall enjoy the recognition and protection of the 
State.”  This provision underscore the importance of 
family as a contributor to social order and individual 
success. While the supreme law calls for the involve-
ment of the state in protecting family, there isn’t 
much to show in government action in this regard.  
Thus, it is essential that government takes deliberate 
steps to support and encourage family stability.  In 
this regard, the following suggestions are made:

(i) Establish a state department dedicated to
     supporting families.  Families need support such
    as pre-marital and marital counseling and support
    services to ensure stability and reduction of family
    breakdown. 

(ii) Tax (and other) incentives for couples who
     choose to formalize marriages.  This will encour
     age couples to marry, which in turn increase stabil-
     ity and reduce breakdowns and the perils that
     follow children following family breakdowns. 

(iii) Provide adequate funding to family support
       services as detailed here.
   
(b) KCPF, the Church and other like-minded organisa
      tions should continue to promote family virtues
      and uphold family 

(c) Strengthen morals among the youth through
      value-based education and mentorship
 
(d) Prevent teenage (and other pre-marital) preg
      nancies through training and support towards
      responsible sexual behaviour 

(e) Promote adoption as a pro-life option in dealing
      with crisis pregnancy.  In this regard, promote a
     culture that accepts abortion and work with the
     government and other stakeholders to streamline
    adoption procedures in Kenya.  

(f) Reform the Marriage Act to support marital
      stability  
(g) Initiate (and strengthen existing) family dispute
       resolution mechanisms

(h) Encourage a culture of adoption and streamline
      adoption procedures in Kenya to facilitate more
     adoption of children.  This will help increase the
     number of children growing up within families.  

 

For this next period, our focus is; 
1. Membership Expansion; via 3 C's framework: Counties, Country and
    Continent.
2. Programmatic Approach of our thematic focus areas: Life, Family, Religion,
    Education & Governance.
3. Evidence-based initiatives, including:

a) State of Life, Family & Faith Report
b) Journal of Family, Law & Religion 
c) Family & Faith Resources Centre
d) National Survey on issues affecting KCPF. 

AGM 2020 - 2021
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MEDIA ENGAGEMENTS

1. Television;
    On 19th October, 2020, Charles Kanjama and Patience
    Muthenya from the secretariat were hosted by Kirk Tv Kenya,
    where they discussed the posture of the Christian professional in
    the market place.

2. Radio;
Dr Wahome, Life Committee Convener was hosted by Radio 
Maria to talk about The Life week in March 2021. Daniel Nyagah, 
Membership and Communications Officer was also hosted on a 
different date to talk about KCPF Version 2.0 initiatives. 

3. Press Statements; 
a) Press Statement on KCPF - IPSOS Perceptions Study on Abortion & Homosexuality,
     August 2020. 
b) Press Statement on The BBI Report, November 2020.
c) Press Statement on the BBI, Economy and Political Intolerance, February 2021.
d) Press Statement on The State of The Country in The Covid-19 Pandemic, April 2021

4. Appearance in Newspaper Articles; 
a)  Vatican News, Kenyan Bishops push against bill on reproductive health care, August
      2020. 
b)  Standard Media; Survey on Abortion, Teenage Pregnancy and Homosexuality,
      August 2020. 
c)  Bylinetimes.com; The Global Anti-Rights NetworksBehind Madrid’s Anti-Feminist
      Rally, June 2021. 

KCPF EVENTS
1. UTUMISHI BORA AWARDS  2020
The Theme for UBA 2020 was : Integrity And Inclusiveness; "Honoring 
Christians who have been making a great impact in the society especial-
ly in this Covid-19 period"
Article 10 (2) of the Kenyan Constitution outlines National Values and 
Principles of Governance that bind all persons in the interpretation, 
development and implementation of public policy decisions in the coun-
try.
Chapter 6 specifically delves into Leadership and Integrity. Article 73 (2) 
highlights five guiding principles of leadership and integrity, and they 
include:

Selection on the basis of personal integrity, competence and suitability, or 
election in free and fair elections.

Objectivity and impartiality in decision-making, and in ensuring that decisions 
are not influenced by nepotism, favoritism, other improper motives or 
corrupt practices.

Selfless service based solely on the public interest, demonstrated by;
• Honesty in the execution of public service
• Declaration of personal interest that may conflict with public duties

Accountability to the public for decisions and actions

Discipline and commitment in service to the people

AGM 2020 - 2021
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The citizens also have to be proactively engaged in the development of leadership in the country. 
Citizens have to be provided with information so that they can participate in their own government for 
the sake of the common good. A great atmosphere has been created for citizens to embrace their 
citizenship not merely as a duty and privilege, but also as an opportunity to meaningfully participate in 
building their nation by electing values-based and visionary leadership. KCPF, therefore, seeks to recog-
nize individuals who have served in an exemplary manner and made a difference in society. 
Thus, the UTUMISHI BORA AWARDS ceremony celebrates those transforming society through their 
service. The ultimate aim of the award is to provide a platform for Christian professionals who have 
served in an exemplary manner to be celebrated and acknowledged in public. By doing so, we contribute 
towards the implementation of chapter 6 of the constitution of Kenya that promotes servant leadership.

1.1 CATEGORIES OF NOMINATION
- Mentorship
- Pioneering & Innovation
- Media Champion
- Research and Writing
- Integrity
- Leadership
- Grand Award- Mtumishi Bora

1.2 THE SELECTION CRITERIA
Grand Award:
this is the overall award, dubbed 
Mtumishi Bora. The awardee in this 
category must have exhibited 
cross-cutting qualities in the above 
categories.

Leadership Award:
the awardee in this category must have 
demonstrated strong leadership and 
influenced in the society and left a 
legacy in their spheres of influence.

Mentorship Award:
must have empowered people by 
educating and teaching through 
his/her unique contribution.

Pioneering/innovation Award:
must have initiated a new profitable 
Christian venture.

Research and Writing Award:
must have been involved in investigat-
ing, surveying and establishing funda-
mental Christian truth and authoring a 
great book that sets people free from 
all forms of bondage.

Integrity Award:
must have demonstrated honesty and 
strong moral principles, faithfulness 
and maintaining a value-based lifestyle.

1.3 THE 2020 UBA WINNERS
In a very elaborate and decisive process, the Jury came up 
with the following runners-up, Final Awardees and 
“Mtumishi Bora Awardee (MBA). Some of the awardees 
were nominated across categories by variousindepen-
dent nominators, placing them on a pivot position.

Mtumishi Bora Prof. Kivutha Kibwana

Leadership Winner Prof. Kivutha Kibwana

Leadership Runner's Up Sis. Rose Macharia

Mentorship Winner Sheila Atieno

Mentorship Runner's Up Lucy Wonder

Pioneering & Innovation Winner Bonnie Mbithi

Pioneering & Innovation Runner's Up Gladys Ngoshi

Integrity No winner

Media No winner

Research & Writing No winner

AGM 2020 - 2021
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1.4 UBA 2020 CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION
Media - Aidah Munzatsi, Kirk TV
Mentorship - Wycliffe Ochieng
Research & Writing - Prof. Kivutha Kibwana

The UTUMISHI BORA 
AWARDS ceremony 

celebrates those transforming 
society through their service. 
The ultimate aim of the award 

is to provide a platform for 
Christian professionals who 
have served in an exemplary 
manner to be celebrated and 
acknowledged in public. By 

doing so, we contribute 
towards the implementation 

of chapter 6 of the 
constitution of Kenya that 

promotes servant leadership

“

”
Mtumishi Bora Awardee

Prof. Kivutha Kibwana being awarded

Prof. PLO Lumumba giving
his speech

2.WEEK OF PRAYER FOR CHRISTIAN UNITY AND ECUMENICAL PRAYER BREAKFAST 2021
At least once a year, Christians are reminded of, 
and move towards fulfilment of Jesus’ prayer for 
his disciples at the Last Supper that “they may be 
one so that the world may believe” (see John 17.21). 
The event that touches off this special experience is 
the Week of Prayer for Christian Unity (WPCU). 
Traditionally the WPCU is celebrated between 18-25 
January. The WPCU has a history of over 100 years, 
in which Christians around the world have taken 
part in an octave of prayer for visible Christian 
unity. 

Kenya Christian Professionals Forum (KCPF) 
through its Religion Committee has the 
mandate to Champion our religious freedom in 
Kenya and beyond. Since 2013, KCPF holds Annual 
Ecumenical Prayer Breakfast In observance of the 
WPCU. 

The leadership and members of KCPF together 
with other invited guests gather to pray for differ-
ent personal and corporate needs. Rotationally, 
the prayers are led by church leaders from the 
three major partners of the organization that is: 
KCCB, EA and NCCK. 
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In observing the WPCU 2021, KCPF;
Ran a Social Media Campaign as well as encouraged our members to pray and take part in observing the 
WPCU. 
Held a Webinar to provide a discourse on the matter of Christian unity.
Held an Ecumenical Prayer Breakfast
Encouraged our partner Churches to focus on Christian unity in their engagements, homilies and 
sermons. 

2.1 WPCU Social Media Campaign
Day 1; Called by God 

“You did not choose me but I chose 
you”
Genesis 12:1-4 The call of Abraham 
John 1:35-51 The call of the first 
disciples.

Prayer 
Jesus Christ, you seek us, you wish to 
offer us your friendship and lead us to 
a life that is ever more complete.  
Grant us the confidence to answer 
your call so that we may be trans-
formed and become witnesses of your 
tenderness for the world.

Source; World council of Churches

Day 2; Maturing Internally
“Abide in me as I abide in you”
John 15:4

The Unity and Maturity of believers 
are two sides of the same coin. Jesus 
called His followers to unite while at 
the same time calling them to grow 
to reach maturity. Both Unity and 
Maturity are defining characteristics 
of the body of Christ. Both are 
depended on the believers’ abiding 
in Christ. Both require the believers 
to actively and deliberately stay 
engaged with Christ. Speaking to His 
disciples using the analogy of the 
Vine, Jesus demonstrates the 
connection between the Unity and 
Maturity of the believers. 

Jesus’ followers are all united by 
their direct connection to the Vine. 
Their growth is depended on the 
spiritual nutrients that they draw 
from the same Vine. Jesus is at the 
center of fostering the Unity of the 
body. As long as the believers stay 
connected to the true Vine, they are 
assured of continuous growth. Jesus 
has promised to abide with those 
who abide in Him. This is a promise 
to every believer who seeks to 
mature in their faith in Him. 

For this reason, let us pray that: 
1.Individual believers will actively and deliberately stay
   engaged in the Word of God. 

2. Individual believers will actively and deliberately seek
    to uphold the principles that unite them with others
    more than those that are divisive. 

3. The body of Christ globally will stay connected to the
     true Vine—Jesus Christ who purchased the church with
     His precious blood. 

4. The body of Christ will manifest Unity and Maturity by
     spreading love throughout the world in order to count
     er the level of hate that continues to spread across the
     world.
 
5. The church will urgently take up the ministry of disciple
    ship in order to help the many people who confess
    Christianity to grow in their faith.
 
By Pastor David Kiniti- Parklands Baptist

AGM 2020 - 2021
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Day 3; “Love One Another As I Have Loved You” 
John 15:12b

Colossians 3:12-17 
"Clothe yourself with compassion."
John 13:1-15; 34-35
 "Love one another."
Prayer
God our Father, you reveal to us your love 
through Christ and through our brothers and 
sisters. Open our hearts so that we can 
welcome each other with our differences and 
live in forgiveness. Grant us to live united in 
one body, so that the gift that is each person 
comes to light. May all of us together be a 
reflection of the living Christ.
Source; World council of Churches

Day 4; Fellowship with Christ 
John 15.15 

Day 5: Letting Oneself Be Transformed By the Word

I no longer call you slaves because a master does 
not confide in slaves. Jesus wants to send no 
doubt that his desire is to have fellowship with us. 
A slave does not know the plan of a master 
because they do not have a relationship. Jesus 
calls us friends because friends have unrestrained 
connections with each other. He wants agreement 
from a sense of friendship. Friendship with Jesus 
entails mutual responsibility. A slave obeys blindly 
'and without insight about his master's purpose. 
Jesus however, chooses to make those who 
fellowship with him his friends. He is not satisfied 
with servile (slavish) obedience, but with motiva-
tion that comes from love. We owe him unquali-
fied obedience as He layed down His life for His 
Friends. When we follow Him as His Friends and do 
His will we become His Disciples. By Pauline Kiarie

“You have already been pruned by the word…” (John 
15:3)
Every person in this world is called by God to be holy. This 
requires nothing less than a radical transformation from 
the "old self". 
Allowing Our Lord to abide in us through prayer and med-
itation on Sacred Scripture will transform us from within 
(Rom 12;2). 
This Spirituality is radically different from mere External 
Religiosity. Our Lord Jesus Christ is the Word, the Son of 
the Father that was always with Him before Creation 
(John 1:1). Being close to Him will ensure that we bear 
much fruit for His Kingdom here on earth, which is within 
the hearts and minds of the believers who abide in Him. 
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Day 6; Welcoming Other 

Continued...
In our earthly pilgrimage, Christians ought to meditate daily on The Word of God in Sacred Scripture, allowing it to 
transform them to resemble the Christ in such a way that they are the Light, Salt and Yeast of the World, wherever 
they go, and whatever they do.

Let us pray that;
1. Believers will commit themselves to daily prayer, meditating on Sacred Scripture until and even after the Word

    becomes second nature.
2. Believers will allow their hearts and minds to be transformed by the Word of God.
3. That believers will be so transformed by the word of God that they overflow with the Fruit of the Holy Spirit.
    (Peace, Love, Joy, Kindness, Patience, Gentleness(Humility), Goodness, Faithfulness.
4. That the overflow of interior life that results from a personal relationship with Christ will result in all humanity
     being attracted to the "Sweet Fragrance" of Christ which will be manifested by works of Love.
5. That whenever a person professes to be a Christian, all humanity will be able to witness their faith through
     their integrity, excellence and professionalism in whatever they do.
6. That Christians all over the world will come to understand that true discipleship always entails carrying one's
    cross, uniting one's suffering to Christ's Cross, therefore, allowing Him to prune them to be as like Him as
    possible.
7. That we may never forget the last important commandment given by Our Lord " Love one another as I have
    loved you" meaning that by this sign all humanity shall know that we are His Disciples; the love we have for
   one another. We should even be ready to die for the sake of our neighbors" salvation
   By Dr Eda Beuttah

“Go and bear fruit, fruit that will last” 
(John 15:16b)
Genesis 18:1-5 
Abraham hosts the angels at the Oak of 
Mamre 
Mark 6:30-44 
Jesus’ compassion for the crowds.
Prayer 
Jesus Christ, we desire to welcome fully 
the brothers and sisters who are with us. 
You know how often we feel helpless in 
the face of their suffering, yet you are 
always there ahead of us and you have 
already received them in your compas-
sion. Speak to them through our words, 
support them through our actions, and 
let your blessing rest on us all.
Source; World Council of Churches

Day 7; Growing In Unity
“I am the vine, you are the branches” (John 15:5a)
1 Corinthians 1:10-13; 3:21-23 Is Christ divided? 
John 17:20-23 As you and I are one
Prayer 
Holy Spirit, vivifying fire and gentle breath, come and abide in us. 
Renew in us the passion for unity so that we may live in awareness 
of the bond that unites us in you. May all who have put on Christ at 
their Baptism unite and bear witness together to the hope that 
sustains them.
Source; World Council of Churches

Day 8; Reconciling With All of Creation
“So that my joy may be in you, and that your joy may be complete” 
(John 15:11)
Colossians 1:15-20 In him all things hold together 
Mark 4:30-32 As small as a mustard seed
Prayer 
Thrice-holy God, we thank you for having created and loved us. We 
thank you for your presence in us and in creation. May we learn to 
look upon the world as you look upon it, with love. In the hope of 
this vision, may we be able to work for a world where justice and 
peace flourish, for the glory of your name.
Source; World Council of Churches
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2.2 WEBINAR ON CHRISTIAN UNITY

2.3 ECUMENICAL PRAYER BREAKFAST 

IKCPF prides itself of having ecumenical uniqueness. We 
have successfully been able to bring together Christian 
professionals from all denominations to advocate for mat-
ters dear to the Christian faith and culture. 
We were thus delighted to spearhead the conversation on 
Christian unity during the WPCU.
 
As part of mobilizing the church towards observance of 
Christian unity, KCPF held a webinar entitled; That All May 
Be One: Fostering Unity of Purpose Amidst Diversity. 
We had clergy from NCCK and KCCB; Fr Martin Mundia, 
Rev Tom Otieno and Rev Jane Kariuki, who addressed the 
issue of unity among different Christian denominations. 

The scripture says in John 13; 35, “By this everyone will know that you are my disciples, if you love 
one another.” When believers live in unity, it reveals the life-changing power of the gospel to a 
watching world. Unity in Christianity is not uniformity; we are not required to do things in the same 
way, but to see each other as brothers and sisters. 
The webinar reached 348 people. 

on Saturday January 23, 2021, church 
leaders and Christian professionals 
converged at Don Bosco Shrine of 
Mary Help of Christians for the 
Prayer Breakfast. 
The Theme of the breakfast meeting 
was: Abide in Christ drawn from 
John 15:4. 
This year’s theme expresses the call 
to prayer, reconciliation and unity in 
the church and the human family. 
The EPB came at a time when the 
country is facing a global pandemic, 
economic recession, questions of 
values,justice, equity, inclusion and 
the Building Bridges Initiative (BBI)
debate.
There is no better time to reflect on the role of faith in the public 
space where professionals have an opportunity to shine the light of 
Christ. When we listen to Jesus his life flows through us. Jesus invites 
us to let his word abide in us (John 15:7) and then whatever  we ask 
will be done for us. By his word we bear fruit. As persons, as a com-
munity, as the entire church, we wish to unite ourselves to Christ in 
order to keep his commandment of loving one another as He has 
loved us 
Fr. John Kipkemoi Korir, MCCJ, who is based in St. Daniel Comboni 
Catholic Church, Nairobi delivered the homily. He delved into the key 
areas, reiterating that Communion with Christ demands communion 
with others. Divisions among Christians, moving away from one 
another,are a scandal because it is also moving further away from 
God. 
Christ’s prayer for unity is an invitation to turn back to him and so come closer to one another, rejoicing in the 
richness of our diversity. We are sustained by the prayer of Christ, who desires that we might be one, as he 
is one with the Father so that the world may believe
Mr Charles Kanjama, KCPF chairperson challenged Christian professionals and the church to be more united, 
courageous and faithful to the call. The event was moderated by Rev Lucas Owako. The prayer sessions were 
led by Fr Martin Mundia (KCCB), Rev Lucy Waweru (NCCK) and Rev Eliud Nthiga (EAK).
The EPB was attended by 47 people. 

KCPF Chairman giving his speech during EPB, 2020

KCPF
Kenya Christian Professionals Forum

Webinar #01

That All May Be One: 
Fostering Unity Of Purpose
Amidst Diversity

For enquiries kindly, Call 0791 801 536
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5:30pm
7:00pm
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Chaplain, Satima Study Centre
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Vincent K. Kimosop
Executive Director KCPF
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Rev Tom Otieno
Clergy of the Anglican Church of Kenya
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Speaker

Rev Jane Kariuki
PCEA Clergy
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We partnered with The Ruth Institute, a 
global interfaith coalition equipping Chris-
tians to defend the family and build a civiliza-
tion of love, to celebrate Marriage Week 
2021, which took place from 7th to 14th 
February, 2021.
 
The week seeks to inspire people to get mar-
ried and stay married, by showing them the 
benefits of marriage to individuals, children, 
and society at large.
“We’re always eager to promote lifelong 
married love, especially this past year when 
couples faced so many challenges getting 
married,” said Dr. Jennifer Roback Morse, 
Ph.D., president and founder of the Ruth 
Institute.

“Marriage is the foundation of civilization, the most reliable social structure for raising helpless bun-
dles of self-centered neediness (namely infants) to become responsible, caring adults.” Morse added, 
“Children raised by their married biological parents, are better adjusted, better students, and more 
likely to avoid destructive adolescent behavior, including drugs, alcohol, and crime.”

Research shows that in the past half-century, marriage has been buffeted by the winds of divorce, 
cohabitation, out-of-wedlock births, and other destructive forces unleashed by the Sexual Revolution. 
On the other hand, married men and women are happier, healthier and better off financially than their 
single counterparts. Children raised by their married, biological parents do better in school and are less 
prone to the pathologies that afflict youth (crime, drugs, alcohol) than children from other types of 
families.

“More importantly,” Morse continued, “children are entitled to a relationship with both parents, 
unless an unavoidable tragedy prevents it. Every person, without exception, is entitled to know the 
identity of their parents, which is the key to knowing their genetic background and cultural and social 
heritage. Lifelong married love protects these legitimate interests of children.” 

The United Nations Universal Declaration of Human Rights calls families formed through marriage, ‘the 
natural and fundamental group unit of society,’ which is, ‘entitled to protection by society and the 
state.’ Without marriage, we become isolated individuals committed only to ourselves, our career, and 
the latest fads. 

3. MARRIAGE WEEK 2021

4. ANNUAL YOUTH CHASTITY CONFERENCE 

In collaboration with partner organizations, KCPF celebrated the Annual Youth Chastity Conference 
held on 13th February, 2021. 

The conference, which is held annually around the celebration of Valentine’s Day, brought together 
High School, University and College Students.



25

5. LIFE WEEK 2021

... continued
The young people who attended benefitted from a 
two-hour engagement which had three overlapping 
components, i.e., a youth dialogue on key questions 
and youth experiences on living chastity during 
COVID-19, edutainment and input from international 
youth organizations on the global perspective as they 
impinged on living chastity.

The youth dialogues were guided by the following 
themes:: Threats to living chastity during COVID-19, The 
role of parents in promoting chastity among youth and 
the role of peers in promoting chastity among youth. 
The conference has over the past six editions cumula-
tively benefited over 3000 youth. 

Kenyan Christians, under the KCPF come together to 
participate in discussions around protection of life, by 
dissecting the vices that degrade the quality of life. 
KCPF participates with its stakeholders and members in 
the annual event, by holding round table conversations 
on life and holding a mark to sensitize the country on 
protection of life and works around it. 
 
The vices against life, which KCPF advocates against can 
be; 

- Reproductive health rights laws and policies
  degrading the value and sanctity of life;
- Assisted reproductive technologies against natural
   life cycle;
- The LGBTQ movement; and
- Comprehensive sexuality education

KCPF celebrates the Life Week, which is an annual event for celebrating life, from conception to natural 
demise. The KCPF Life Committee works in collaboration with other pro-life organizations under Linda 
Uhai Consortium to promote and protect human life and dignity. 
Life week seeks to sensitize Christians and all people on the sanctity of life and the need to protect it, as 
a God-given gift, from undue and unethical legislations, practices and movements that negate the sereni-
ty and value of life
This year, we celebrated Life Week under very unique circumstances- COVID 19 and MOH restrictions. 
Therefore, most activities were held online. Despite that, there was a great impact. 
Life Week 2021 comprised of; Life Sunday, virtual Life Symposium and the virtual March for Life. 

Was held on Sunday, 21st March 2021. 
We drafted a Life Sunday Prayer which was shared to all our church partners, friends and members. 
KCPF was invited to join in the Sunday service, St Paul’s Chapel, which has 800 congregants. 

5.1 LIFE SUNDAY

AGM 2020 - 2021
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5.2 VIRTUAL LIFE SYMPOSIUM

5.3 VIRTUAL LIFE MARCH

The life symposium, held on 23rd March 2021, 
was a hybrid model of both in person and virtual 
attendance. The in-person session, reserved to 
thirty persons was held at the Catholic University 
of East Africa where the livestreaming of the 
event happened for the virtual attendees.
The event was co-sponsored by Citizen Go, the 
Catholic University of East Africa, Family Watch 
International and Dr. Wahome Ngare the conve-
ner for the KCPF life committee.

The theme for the symposium was demystifying 

i. Don Feder from the Ruth Institute speaking about the The View from Sinai – A Jewish Perspective on
   Abortion
ii. Dr. Wahome Ngare from KCPF speaking about Myths Concerning Sexuality
iii. Aketch Aimba from Pearls and Treasures Trust speaking about Myths Concerning Social Issues.
iv. Dr.  Jean Kagia, founder PLMT Trust speaking about Myths Concerning Life, Humanity, and
     Personhood.

The speakers were;

The life march 2021, a virtual event held on Zoom, was held on 
the 27th March, 2021. It was sponsored and facilitated by KCPF. 
The theme for the 2021 Life march was, 
‘’Man, Where are You?’’ 

The theme revolved around the role of men in promoting and 
protecting life from conception to natural demise. The concern 
around men’s role in protection of life revolved around the 
unprecedented loss of life due to termination of pregnancies, 
with an annual average 73 million deaths since 2015-2019 in 
Africa. 

This is largely due to the surging number of women of reproduc-
tive age and the diminishing responsibility men take up in caring 
for the pregnancies. 

The rising number of termination of pregnancies by women is as a result of the men neglecting responsibil-
ity over pregnancies, leaving expectant women vulnerable to abortive thoughts and hence leading them 
to procure termination of pregnancy services.

KCPF staff / representatives at the virtual
life symposium event
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Family Symposium

myths in the life ministry. The symposium attracted a virtual audience of 143 persons and thirty physically 
present. 
It was streamed live on facebook, where it received over 43 shares and over 2500 engagements.

The event brought brought together members of Linda Uhai Consortium; Family Watch International, Ruth 
Institute, Citizen Go, Pearls and Treasures, KCCB, World Youth Alliance, PLMT as well as prolife students from 
University of Nairobi, KU, CUEA and MMUST.  
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5.4  SOCIAL MEDIA CAMPAIGN 

5.5 ACHIEVEMENTS

... continued
This year, KCPF calls out all men to take responsibility and stand up and protect their own children, before 
and after birth.

In Jeremiah 1 v 5, ‘’before I formed you in the womb, I knew you, before you were born, I set you apart; I 
appointed you as a prophet to the nations.”  This verse directly speaks to us Christians, to understand the 
importance of life as being planned and given by God, and the purpose of the embryo as anointed and 
blessed before birth. This therefore reminds us that no conception is a mistake nor is any pregnancy an 
unwanted pregnancy. Termination of pregnancy is therefore an affront against the Christian Faith and a 
show of disobedience to the word of God by men and women. This also, informs us that no one has the 
right to choose for the unborn, on whether they should live or be terminated before birth. That right does 
not reside in women or men but lies solely on the will and the plan of God.

About 70 Prolifers from all over Kenya, attended the virtual march for life and most got the opportunity 
to share with the audience what they are doing in the protection for life. 
The men, as parents, should participate in raising children from their young and tender age to their matu-
rity, both physically, emotionally and in spirit and will of God; and to learn to protect the value of family 
and life at all stages.

We had a WhatsApp group- Life Week 2021 Champions- composed of 85 young individuals whose role 
was to spearhead the social media campaign. 

The hashtags #LifeWeek 2021 and #ManWhereAreYou trended on twitter, with over 150 mentions and 
more than 250,000 impressions. 

The Events were fully sponsored by Citizen Go, Mercy Medical Clinic, Family Watch International and 
Catholic University of East Africa

We succeeded in demystifying the myths around life ministry; such myths include terms such as safe 
abortions, intersex etc

We succeeded in calling out the man and sensitizing the male gender to rise up and take their role in 
protecting life. 

We drafted a life prayer which was used in at least two congregations on life Sunday.

We held a hybrid life symposium, with 30 people physically, 143 people on Zoon and over 2500 people 
on Facebook.

We held a virtual March for Life which brought together over 70 people on Zoom.

We held a successful social media campaign, with 85 people in a Whatsapp group, ‘Life Week 2021 
Champions’, 150 mentions and more than 250,000 impressions on twitter. 

AGM 2020 - 2021



Covid 19 pandemic has caused an indelible dent in an 
already rapidly changing world. The advent and 
continuous ravaging of the pandemic has brought 
about a complex interplay of social, political, psycho-
social and economic factors which have had enor-
mous pervasive impacts on social order and the family 
unit. 

The weak lines in family structures have been exposed 
and the stability of the family unit has been most 
tested. It has brought about huge amounts of stress 
and anxiety to members of the family. The economic 
recession, loss of lives and livelihoods has taken a toll 
on the well-being of many family members. No 
wonder, in Kenya, it is reported that since the advent 
of the pandemic, cases of domestic violence, spousal 
murders, suicide cases, teenage pregnancies amidst 
other social ills have been on a steep rise. 

Moreover, due to the social distancing measures 
brought about by the pandemic, our lives have been 
digitalized in unprecedented ways. School, work, 
church, weddings, funerals etc. have gone online. Life 
in the virtual space has come with its own share of 
benevolence, as well as malevolence. Many have 
found themselves exposed to the traps and dangers 
of the internet which a few months ago was fiction. 
New technologies have come with new freedoms, 
new dangers and a need for renewed mindsets. 

Given those many permanent changes and impacts 
caused by the pandemic, this year, we focused on the 
following questions;

1. What is the kind of family God Wants through and
    post the pandemic?

2. How can families thrive through the pandemic and
    post-pandemic times?

3. How can families navigate the crises brought about
    by Covid 19?

4. How can families respond to the impacts of new
    technologies?

In the ultimate analysis, we found out, only a 
spiritual return to the Biblical foundations will 
address the root concerns of the current crisis. 
Marriage and the family were God's idea, and as 
divine institutions, they are not open to human 
renegotiation or revision. 

The world has rejected the Creator's plan and 
has fashioned a variety of God-substitutes to fill 
the void that can only properly be filled by God 
himself. The Bible provides a strong founda-
tion, rationale and good examples of family.

 The family is a masterpiece of God’s Creation. 
It is central to God’s plan for His children. It is 
the fundamental building block of strong soci-
eties. Two essential elements of family: mar-
riage and parenthood reveal God’s character 
like nothing else in Creation. The love between 
a husband and wife provides a glimpse of 
Christ’s passionate devotion to us as His bride. 
And family does more than reflect God’s char-
acter, it also provides a safe place where 
children can experience God’s love (through 
their parents) and learn how to love other 
people.

6. FAMILY WEEK 2021
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The world has rejected the 
Creator's plan and has fashioned a 
variety of God-substitutes to fill the 

void that can only 
properly be filled by God himself.

 The Bible provides a strong
 foundation, rationale and good 

examples of family.
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6.1 ACTIVITIES

6.2 SOCIAL MEDIA CAMPAIGN: 

6.3 KCPF FAMILY SYMPOSIUM: 

The week included events and forums to assemble and validate biblical insights that were intending to 
unite the church behind a common strategy to reverse missed opportunities and collaborate with the 
government towards protecting the family. 

It provided an opportunity to reflect on the best possible future for the country and interrogate the 
corrective steps, which the Church needs to employ to reconstruct the family in the way that God 
requires it to be constructed. 

Family week took place from Sunday, 9th May, 2021 (Mother’s Day) to Saturday 15th May, 2021 (United 
nations International Day of the Families)

Throughout the whole week, we ran a social media campaign dubbed #StandWithFamily which is 
provided knowledge and insights on promotion and protection of the family. 

We shared messages on WhatsApp, Twitter and Facebook to promote the family.

Took place on Friday 14th May, 2021 from 9:00am to 
12:00pm EAT. 
The theme for the event was Families in Crisis; Hope for 
Restoration. 
The symposium was held virtually for the first time. It had 
an attendance of 100 people on Zoom and more than 200 
views on Facebook. 

Speakers were Don Feder of Ruth Institute, speaking 
about The Fate of Nations Hinges on The Future Of Mar-
riage, Caroline Shisubili Maingi from Strathmore Universi-
ty spoke on Navigating Parenting through and post-pan-
demic.

Robert Colquhoun from 40Days for Life spoke on Digital 
Families; the new normal of family life under Covid 19, 

AGM 2020 - 2021
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In the beautifully poetic words of the King James Bible:
 “Male and female created He them; and blessed them, and called their name Adam, in the day when they 

were created.”  Also, “Therefore shall a man leave his father and his mother, and shall cleave unto his wife: 
and they shall be one flesh.” From this we can see that marriage is an essential part of God’s plan for 

humanity.

AGM 2020 - 2021

So, why marriage? Here are five reasons:

Married couples are healthier, better off financially, happier and less at risk then their single counterparts.
  
Children need a mother and a father (male and female role models) in the home. Children who are living 
with their married, biological parents are happier, better-adjusted, better students and less likely to fall 
prey to the pathologies that afflict far too many of the young these days -- drugs, alcohol, crime and 
pre-marital sex.

Society needs children – Marriage leads to children. Despite the myth of overpopulation, worldwide fertili-
ty (the number of children the average woman will have in her lifetime) has been cut almost in half in the 
past 70 years – falling from 4.7 in 1950 to 2.4 today. This is perilously close to replacement level fertility 
(2.1). Population growth will stop in this century. Population decline will soon follow. While children are 
born out of wedlock, most women feel that to have more than one or two requires the kind of security 
that comes from marriage. So, more marriage equals more children.

Men and women need each other – As marriage has declined loneliness has increased markedly – so has 
mental illness, addiction and suicides. In Genesis, God says: “It is not good that the man should be alone; 
I will make an help meet for him."  What was true in the beginning is true today: There is no substitute for 
the companionship provided by a life partner. Most of us have an innate need to connect intimately to 
another human being. The Talmud tells us that in the beginning, all souls split into male and female parts. 
The purpose of marriage is to unite the halves – for each of us to find our soulmate.

Society needs to solve the problem of destructive male instincts – The most dangerous force in any society 
is unattached males between the ages of 16 and 30. Prisons are filled with them, so are halfway houses, 
homeless shelters and drug rehabilitation centers. We know this to be instinctively true. Say you were in a 
bad section of a city at night and you saw a group of tough-looking young men coming toward you. Would 
you be relieved to learn that they were married? Of course you would. Men and women are different. Men 
need women to tame the destructive aspect of male nature. (Within marriage, women force men to grow 
up.) Women need men for protection and security. 

Without marriage, we will enter a brave new world where individuals live largely by and for themselves 
and social arrangements are transitory and utilitarian. Procreation will be increasingly rare. To counter this, 
we need to return to our roots – especially the Bible, a handbook for family living. Once upon a time, even 
the United Nations understood the primacy of marriage and family. 

Article 16 of the 1948 United Nations’ Universal Declaration of Human Rights acknowledged that the 
family, based on marriage between man and a woman, is “the natural and fundamental group unit of soci-
ety” and, as such, is “entitled to protection by society and the state.” To say the family based on marriage 
is “the … fundamental group unit of society,” means it’s the foundation. Demolish the foundation, and 
the entire structure collapses. Marriage is the glue that holds society together. That’s why marriage mat-
ters, and the fight for marriage is the fight for our future -- the fight for civilization itself.
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6.4 UNITED NATIONS INTERNATIONAL DAY OF THE FAMILY (IDOF) : 

The IDOF led by the Government’s Ministry of Labour and Social Protection in collaboration with KCPF 
took place on Saturday 15th May, 2021 from 9:00am to 1:00pm EAT. 

It brought together more than 200 people on Zoom and was also streamed live on Facebook as well as 
on KTN TV. 

AGM 2020 - 2021

7.ADVOCACY TRAINING AND CHRISTIAN 
   PERSECUTION BRAINSTORMING

Advocacy Training, took place on 27th & 28th May, 2021 and 
Christian Persecution Brainstorming Meeting took place on 
29th May, 2021. 
KCPF, under the Linda Uhai programme is co-convened the 
event. 
35 young people and University students were trained on 
advocacy. The training ended with drafting a press state-
ment, which was recorded and shared with a few media 
stations.
The leaders who facilitated the sessions are:  

1. Bethany Janzen (Director of European Development for ProLife Europe)
2. John Mark (A Moment of Hope Board Member)
3. Angelique Clark (LifeDress.org Founder)
4. Belinda Schmölzer (Austrian Regional Director of ProLife Europe)
5. Lois McLatchie (Communications Officer at ADF International).

The training involved a two-day intensive and comprehensive knowledge equipping engagement among 
different local Prolife organizations as stated above and movements led by teams from UK and US. 

The areas covered during the training included the following; 

Public Speaking on prolife can happen in different settings like interviews in media, trainings, workshops, 
parliament, churches, schools etc. 
Principles of public speaking 

The law of public speaking calls for any speaker to stay on the message, do practice and always be acces-
sible. Communication is only about 10 % of the content you share.

7.1 Giving a Life Talk in a Public Setting.

- Know the subject matter 
- Know your audience. 
- Know your message and purpose.
- Know your identity as a speaker.  

Pro Life Advocacy Training
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7.2 KENYA YOUTH MANIFESTO; THE PRO-LIFE KENYA YOUTH DECLATION ON LIFE AND FAMILY-
      THE PORTIUNCULA, 2021 DECLARATION 

The Life Talk;  When giving a talk about prolife the following 6 steps should guide the speaker. 

Redemption through Christ; There is always hope for everyone who feels broken and incomplete at 
heart in life after procuring an abortion to feel complete and loved again. They can start a new life and 
believe in God. The Bible teaches about redemption in the story of Paul who was persecuting Christian 
but was transformed and worked for God. The story of Jesus who came to the world to pay the ultimate 
price of sin for man is the key reminder of the love of God and His willingness to give everyone a second 
chance and a new life.

The Law of Land might be imbalanced. As much as there are laws that protect human life. There will be 
organizations and individuals that will come up with different bills and laws that seek to compromise the 
law that protects the dignity of human life. 

The victims; We should show love to the abortion victims and be willing to welcome them to support 
them and be close to them. We need to mobilize resources to help women in crisis situations. 

Speaking out; Pro-lifers should always speak out and take full responsibility to inform other people and 
create awareness about human life. 

The Biology of Life; The scientific knowledge of how the male gamete meets the female gamete and 
fuses to form a zygote is the basic point where life begins. Life begins at conception and so does the 
constitution of Kenya state under chapter 4 part 2, article 26 (2).

Abortion; This is the process by which pregnancy is terminated resulting in the death of a fetus/baby. It 
is intentional killing of the unborn to get rid of pregnancy. This is contrary to the provisions of the consti-
tution of Kenya chapter 4-part 2 article 26(3) & (4) as stated hereunder. A person shall not be deprived 
of life intentionally, except to the extent authorized by this Constitution or other written law. Abortion 
is not permitted unless, in the opinion of a trained health professional, there is need for emergency 
treatment, or the life or health of the mother is in danger, or if permitted by any other written law."

We the youth of Kenya who hold the greatest stake in leading the nation of tomorrow. Convinced 
of the inherent “dignity and worth of the human person,” and that “every human being has the 
inherent right to life,” Recognizing that the right to life of every human being is protected in 
Article 26(1) and 26(2) of the Kenya Constitution.  Recognizing that Kenya is a signatory to the 
convention on the Rights of the child, which, in its preamble, states that “the child, by reason of 
his/her physical and mental immaturity, needs special safeguards and care, including appropriate 
legal protection, before as well as after birth.”

Recalling that there is no international right to abortion. Noting with deep concern the interna-
tional pressures placed on the government to enhance abortion by foreign actors with little 
appreciation for Kenya’s norms and values. 

Therefore, call on the government of Kenya to make the following commitments:

1. To recognize that legalization of abortion will not make abortion “safe,” and protect the women 
of Kenya resisting pressure to legalize it.  
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2. To take steps to improve the health care system infrastructure, increase midwife training and 
devote more resources to maternal health, with a special focus on developing crisis pregnancy 
centers with the focus on getting mothers and babies safely through pregnancy and childbirth. 

3. To empower the next generation of Kenya to support human rights principles for all members of 
the human family, including the unborn, by ensuring that educational curriculums teach and 
promote the inherent value of every life. 

4. To promote that adequate counselling services are available to those who have suffered the 
trauma of abortion. 

5. To ensure that commitments made by the government to “reduce resources to abortion,”5are 
upheld by ensuring that the next generation are equipped by programs regarding fertility awareness 
training. 

6. To analyze and investigate international partnerships agreements before signing them to avoid 
committing to abortion-oriented agreements, and clearly identify the underlying conditions to 
joining to uphold the constitutional rights of Kenya. 

We, the undersigned, therefore, call upon the government to refuse to accept language within 
agreements, particularly including the EU-ACP Partnership Agreement, that seeks to undermine Ken-
ya’s current legal protection on the right to life of all persons, born or unborn. 
Kenya is prolife.

7.3. CHRISTIAN PERSECUTION BRAINSTORMING 

Alliance Defending Freedom (ADF) International is a faith-based legal advocacy organization that 
protects fundamental freedoms and promotes the inherent dignity of all people. ADF met with 
KCPF secretariat, a representative of KCPF Religion Committee, Caring Friends Ministry and Great 
Commission Support Network. 

ADF was interested in the state of the country in the area of Christian Persecution. The round table 
had 6 people. We identified several issues amounting to Christian persecution in Kenya. 

KCPF depends on its Members, Partners and friends for support; be it Financial, Material or 
Spiritual, to effectively influence the society. Presently, our society is faced with numerous issues 
such as the endangerment of rights and moral values: 

8. ANGAZA 2021

- The right to life is threatened 
- The family institution is under attack 
- Education as a transformational institution is underrated 
- Religious freedom is threatened 
- The integrity of leadership is lost 
- Our media majorly features obscene content.  
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1. Article 26(1&2) protects the right to life; 
2. Article 45 recognizes the Family as the Fundamental Unit of the society; 
3. Articles 43 & 53 provide for the right to education and the protection of children’s rights;
4. Article 32 promotes freedom of religion;
5. Article 10 states the National Values;
6. Chapter 6 talks on Leadership and Integrity.

Whilst the Constitution is clear on these issues, implementation is fairly distant. The moral degrada-
tion in Kenya reveals the dire need to establish a strong foundation for proactive approach by Chris-
tian Professionals in handling the contemporary issues affecting our society.

We need your urgent financial support to keep the cause of KCPF alive. Without this, we cannot func-
tion effectively: 

- The court cases will not be prosecuted, 

- The fight for moral values through our various engagements on matters such as the Right to Life and
   Human Dignity will be compromised, 

- Family values and Value Based Education systems will lack the essential support they desperately
  require.

In efforts to raise funds to enable KCPF stay alive, we 
are running Angaza Fundraiser Campaign to raise 
Kshs. 20M. The monthly Secretariat operational cost 
is Kshs 333,000. 

The annual budget for programs is Kshs 16 million to 
help KCPF remain strong and more empowered to 
carry out her mandate of Research, Advocacy work 
and Networking to provide technical support to the 
church and para-church organizations, influence and 
intervene in Laws, Policies, Bills, Court cases and 
lobbying for moral values in all spheres of the society 
and promote a wholesome society that respects bibli-
cal values.

We invite you to the ongoing Angaza Fundraising cam-
paign. Please support by sending your donations to 
the following:

Paybill no:   750407 - Account: Angaza

Cooperative Bank of Kenya
Account No.: 01128128293800
Cheques payable to: Kenya Christian Professionals Forum
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9. CHURCH AND POLITICS SUMMIT 2021
The world over, politics seems to be the single most domi-
nant determinant of the stability and destiny of nations. 
Tension, violence and, at times, outright wars have resulted 
from negative politics. Should Christians advance political 
agendas? And can clergy seek elective political office?
Welcome to the CHURCH AND POLITICS SUMMIT 2021. A 
3-day virtual conference set to create meaningful dialogue 
between the Christian community and the political mar-
ketspace.

The Church and Politics Summit is an initiative of the Kenya 
Church, and is run in conjunction with Hesabika Trust, Kenya 
Christians Professionals Forum and The Catalead.
This unique 3-day conference brings together leaders from 
both the Christian community and the political marketplace, 
and is designed to help the church set the agenda for 
engagement.
The world over, politics seems to be the single most dominant determinant of the stability and destiny of 
nations. Whether in the most advanced nations or in the lowest developing countries, negative politics has 
resulted in tension, violence and, at times, outright wars.
It’s time for the church to stop playing catch up in these critical conversations, and begin to set the agenda 
for national conversations.

Join us for this unique 3-day virtual summit, brought to you by the church in Kenya in collaboration with the 
National Cohesion and Integration Commission (NCIC), as we engage around these important national mat-
ters.
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CASE NO.

Petition
397 of 2018

PARTIES STATUS (ONGOING)

Peter Solomon Gichira & 2 
others vs
Kenya National Examinations 
Council & 4 others [2020] 
eKLR

In the Mater of Articles 22 And 23 Of the Consti-
tution of Kenya And in The Matter of Sections 
4,7,9,13,19,22 & 119(1) (K) Of the Children’s Act, 
2001 And in The Matter of Contravention and 
Or Alleged Contravention of Rights of The 
Child.

The petition seeks to compel Kenya Institute 
for Curriculum Development to develop, 
approve and implement a comprehensive 
sexual and reproductive health program in the 
primary and secondary school curricula. 

Court of Appeal, 
Appeal 536 of 2019; 

Eric Gitari v Attorney General 
& another [2016] eKLR;

the appellant had petitioned the court to 
declare Sections 162 and 165 of the Penal 
Code, CAP 63 (disputed provisions) to be 
unconstitutional, and accordingly void and / 
or invalid to the extent that they purport to 
criminalize private consensual sexual 
conduct between adult persons of the same 
sex, (relevant conduct), as mandated by 
Articles 2 (4), and 23 (3) (d) of the Constitu-
tion. 
The Court in High Court found that penal 
provisions outlawing homosexuality are 
constitutional. 

Court of Appeal,
Appeal No. 594 of 
2019

Federation of Women Law-
yers (Fida – Kenya) & 3 others 
v Attorney General & 2 others.

KCPF is an interested party in an appeal chal-
lenging a High Court Judgement that had 
previously allowed Constitutional Petition 
challenging the withdrawal of Guidelines 
that were being used to train health 
professionals on abortion. 

Petition No. Eoo8 
of 2020;

Petition No. 428 
of 2018

Marie stopes
Constitutional 
Petition

KCPF is an interested party in an appeal chal-
lenging a High Court Judgement that had 
previously allowed Constitutional Petition 
challenging the withdrawal of Guidelines 
that were being used to train health 
professionals on abortion. 

Network for Adolescents and 
Youth of Africa & Anor, High 
Court Constitutional 

KCPF is enjoined in this Constitutional peti-
tion challenging Kenya Film Classification 
Board’s decision that banned the airing of an 
advert promoting abortion. 
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ADVOCACY INITIATIVES 
1. NATIONAL FAMILY PROMOTION AND PROTECTION POLICY 

2. REPRODUCTIVE HEALTH CARE BILL (RHB) 

KCPF and its National Family Consortium played a 
key role in developing the National Family Promotion 
and Protection Policy under the leadership of the 
Ministry of Labour and Social Protection. 
The policy is currently awaiting ascension at the Cabi-
net level. 
The Constitution of Kenya Chapter 4, Article 45 
recognizes the family as the natural and fundamen-
tal unit of the society and the necessary basis of 
social order and should therefore enjoy the recogni-
tion and protection of the State. It further states 
that, every adult has the right to marry a person of 
the opposite sex, based on the free consent of the

parties. In Article 45(3), the Constitution states that parties are entitled to equal rights at the time of 
the marriage, during the marriage and at dissolution of the marriage. In addition to the Constitution, at 
national level there are various legislations which are relevant to the family in general and to specific 
family members and issues affecting them.

The National Policy on Family Promotion and Protection will provide a coherent and comprehensive 
framework for the implementation and monitoring of policies and programmes to ensure that the 
protection and support of the family is ingrained in them. This will enable the family to play effectively 
its vital role in the country’s development. It is envisaged that this Policy will facilitate the existence of 
an environment that will strengthen the capacity of families to enhance and support the socio-eco-
nomic empowerment, nurturance and protection of individuals and vulnerable members. 

This Policy is built around the recognition of the family as a fundamental social unit and of the various 
educational, nurturing and caring functions they perform towards their members. It identifies 
issues/challenges facing families, and also provides a broad-based framework for implementing strate-
gies that will enable families make meaningful participation in the development processes.
This Policy is also a commitment by the Government to provide services and protection to families 
while according them an environment conducive for the enjoyment of their freedoms, liberties and 
pursuit of happiness. The support of various stakeholders in the implementation of this Policy will be 
critical. The Government therefore welcomes partners, stakeholders and other players in the imple-
mentation of this Policy. 

The RHB is “A Bill for AN ACT of Parliament to provide for the right to reproductive health care; to set 
the standards of reproductive health; provide for the right to make decisions regarding reproductive 
health; and for connected purposes”
KCPF spearheaded the advocacy which led to the shooting down of the Reproductive Health care Bill 
at the Senate.
 
This was because, the Bill, in its drafting, literal and purposive meaning only sought to weaken the 
family structure in Kenya. Article 45 of the Constitution (“Constitution of Kenya 2010”) emphasizes the 
quintessential role of a family as the natural and fundamental unit of society and the necessary basis of 
social order.  In these natural and fundamental units, adults are formally married to persons of the 
opposite sex. We believe it is in such a family structure that procreation happens and human life begins 
at conception. 



38

AGM 2020 - 2021

... Continued
In family units, children born ought to have their rights protected as articulated under Article 53 of the 
Constitution. In so doing, the right to health should be interpreted in light of Article 53 and the values 
and aspirations as set out in the Preamble of the Constitution, “to nurture and protect the wellbeing 
of the individual, family and community,”; but not subjecting it to Sexual and Reproductive Health 
Rights ideology whose main aim is to water down the Constitutional rights of the family and children.
  
The Bill sought to promote abortion, family planning services and same sex surrogacy arrangements 
under the guise of “right to health care”. Instead of providing health care services to save the lives of 
both mother and child and to help them both obtain the highest level of attainable health, the Bill 
allows for deliberate taking away of human life. Our beliefs, however founded on Christianity, are that 
all attempts must be made to save the life of the child as well as the mother.

Additionally, all references to services, education or information for children of minor age, and in 
particular youth-friendly or adolescent-friendly or child-friendly services or information and any refer-
ences to confidentiality are used to bypass and deprive off parental responsibility rights. The Bill totally 
disregarded the role of parents to guide the education and healthcare of their children. To this end, the 
Bill allows third parties to provide children with information, education, services related to sex or sexu-
ality and reproductive health without full knowledge of and written consent of their parents.

The Bill created “rights.” For instance, “every person has a right to assisted reproduction” and “repro-
ductive rights” whose scope is “an age of reproduction.” The right to Health, we believe, should be 
afforded to every person throughout out their life course but not limited to an “age of reproduction”. 
The Bill inaptly assumed the elderly do not have health care needs.

3. KCPF’S RESPONSE TO BUILDING BRIDGES INITIATIVE (BBI) 

KCPF, together with partners, presented a proposal to the BBI Task Force; Kenya Conference of Catholic 
Bishops (KCCB), National Council of Churches of Kenya (NCCK) and the Evangelical Alliance of Kenya 
(EAK).  The proposal highlighted the areas proposed for amendment, cited specific provisions of the 
constitution that needed to be amended and suggested how the proposed amendments should read.

We had had a thorough examination and critical analysis of relevant recommendations on the BBI 
Report. The nine points agenda on BBI mandate formed the framework for the discussion and our 
formulation in the rest of the Memo. 

The Report provides recommendations as proposed action, which should be taken up in respect of gaps 
and problems identified. Although the Report identifies some of the challenges in Kenya, some of the 
recommendations were not realistic, feasible nor viable. In any case, recommendations should follow 
the root of the problem; but we find some instances where the recommendations and constitutional 
amendments proposed, must ensure that the constitution remains a coherent, unified and functioning 
document.
   
We underscored the fact that the Report could be improved to promote at all levels, an inclusive and 
genuinely participatory political culture, and seek to build upon institutional values that recognize Ken-
ya’s political and administrative decentralization, and accountability to improve the quality of people’s 
lives.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT 

4. CHURCH REGULATION; PROPOSED CODE OF CONDUCT FOR CHURCHES IN KENYA 

KCPF has been collaborating with HESABIKA Trust to work on a Code of Conduct for Churches in Kenya. 
The religious sector in Kenya is already regulated under various laws including the Societies Act 
(Cap108), the Marriage Act 2014, the Trustees (Perpetua; Succession) Act, and the Companies Act. 
Additionally, criminal behaviour for any individual or society is covered by sanctions under the Penal 
Code.
 
Regardless, the Government of Kenya has from time to time indicated that it will put into place further 
regulation, for example the Religious Societies Regulations 2015. The reasons the Government has given 
for this need range from security concerns due to radicalization and terrorism, to economic exploitation 
of followers. There have also been claims of money laundering through religious societies, and
infighting in churches with some matters going to court. 

While church leaders have often stated that they can self-regulate, currently nothing is in place that 
binds churches of different denominations and/or umbrella bodies. Related to this, the majority of 
churches do not belong to an umbrella body thus making it difficult to speak in one voice especially in 
regard to self-regulation and discipline. It is for this reason that Hesabika Trust and KCPF have offered to 
support churches in drafting a Code of Conduct which they can use for their own self-discipline. 

The use of the Code of Conduct would then demonstrate to the government that the Church has not 
only the will but also the tool for self-regulation. In addition, Church Governance Guidelines, developed 
by a wide cross-section of church leaders who are themselves governance professionals, and validated 
by church leaders, would be mad available to enable the churches to live up to the Code of Conduct. 

NETWORKING AND PARTNERSHIP REPORT 

NETWORKING: COURTESY CALLS 

To strengthen our partnership and collaboration with other organizations, KCPF has been having 
courtesy calls w ith several organizations, as detailed below; 

Kenya Film Classification Board
 (KFCB)

We agreed to have a MoU KCPF-KFCB so as to institu-
tionalize the partnerships, monthly virtual calls to 
follow through on the partnership. The key focus of 
advocacy for protecting our shared values through 
the media and collaborate on a webinar on child 
protection from harmful media content. 

Institute of Certified Public Accountants of 
Kenya (ICPAK)

We agreed to enter into an MoU to guide our part-
nerships as we work in areas of common interest, to 
work on a Joint Paper that will be used to inform 
advocacy work in Governance & Family matters in 
the country. Engagement on Policies and Bills affect-
ing the family. 

Collaboration on a webinar on Budget and tax 
proposals. Family focuses analysis is an approach 
they have not taken on in the past and the partner-
ship can be a good place to start. 
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The Association of Professionals of East Africa
 (APSEA)

KCPF is committed to become a professional body. 
The first step is to be registered as a member of East 
Africa’s main professional body, APSEA. 

Cooperative Bank of Kenya   We agreed that the Bank would be actively involved 
in KCPF activities and events, and their Official Prayer 
Team joined KCPF as associate members. 

Inter Religious Council of Kenya (IRCK) IRCK is ready and has been seeking professional 
engagement on technical matters which can be an 
area of collaboration.

Law Society of Kenya (LSK) We collaborated in celebration of Katiba Day 2020, 
held on 27th August in commemoration of the 10th 
Anniversary of the promulgation of the Kenyan
Constitution. 

National Council of Churches of Kenya 
(NCCK)

NCCK willing to give a facility to host the Call 
Centre/CCDRC. We agreed to collaborate in advocat-
ing for divorce cases to go through the officiating 
church 1st for mediation before the messy court 
cases. KCPF and NCCK to work together to request 
the AG to lift moratorium on Church regulation

Institute of Certified Secretaries (ICS) Partner in webinars on governance as well as journals 
on leadership. 

Kenya Conference of Catholic Bishops
(KCCB)

Partner in getting volunteers trained for Call center 
and CCDRC. Work together in advocacy issues such as 
Reproductive Health care Bill. 

Anglican Church of Kenya (ACK) Requested KCPF to continue advancing its values and 
in the fight against social evils (Corruption, abortion, 
violence) and address the revenue allocation bill. 
Establish KCPF chapters in all major churches to see 
how to engage more Christians professionals, 
start professional talk days in churches which will 
help in membership recruitment

Ethics and Anti-Corruption Commission 
(EACC)

KCPF will be sending UBA nomination list to EACC 
and to get feedback within a week. KCPF to be invit-
ing EACC in our events i.e. family symposium to 
advance the fight against corruption. Through KCPF 
EACC to establish strong network with Churches and 
see how to step up the fight against corruption (80% 
of Kenyans are Christians)

Presbyterian Church of East Africa (PCEA) KCPF to offer training on matrimonial property act to 
church members of PCEA
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National Council of Population and 
Development (NCPD)

Establish a clear contact for communication with 
NCPD (our partner representatives, technical team 
and the board). NCPD to recognize KCPF as a stake-
holder when doing its policy development. Both 
sides to share any important materials/policy docu-
ments for public understanding. KCPF needs to 
engage more with NCPD to enlighten them on some 
of the terms used e.g. SRHR. 

Kenya Private Sector Association (KEPSA) KCPF to join other concerned stakeholders / profes-
sionals in to raising concern about the rampart 
corruption scandals. KEPSA has developed Business 
Code of Ethics, KCPF can join in advocating for com-
panies to sign the code and also encourage govern-
ment to work with only companies that have signed. 

Misereor KCPF visited the new country director of Misereoir to 
welcome her to Kenya and seek possible collabora-
tion. 

Ethical Leadership Network (ELNET) KCPF to collaborate help ELNET on UBA and have 
input in developing the UBA corporate category tool. 
KCPF, ELNET HESABIKA (plus other like-minded orga-
nization) to form a governance consortium seeking 
to be carrying out civic education in preparation of 
2022 general elections.

International Leadership University (ILU) KCPF to working with ILU and have them offer a 
Transformation Leadership course for the KCPF 
members.

Strathmore institute of Family studies (IFS) IFS to be sharing their events, podcasts, book 
reviews with KCPF which will be included in our 
newsletter

Solicitor General Mr Ken Ogeto He will help us seek a meeting with the registrar of 
societies to discuss the Moratorium for Churches 
and also Issues of marriage (CCDRC)

PARTNERSHIPS

To deepen and expand its partnerships, KCPF is currently working to join the following organizations; 
- Evangelical Alliance of Kenya (EAK) as an Associate Member
- National Council of Churches of Kenya (NCCK) as an Associate Member
- Association of Professionals of East Africa (APSEA) as a Corporate Member
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TREASURER’S STATEMENT
Kenya Christian Professional Forum is incorporated in Kenya under the Kenyan Companies Act as a 
company Limited by Guarantee and not having share capital, and is domiciled in Kenya.
 I am pleased to report that the Kenya Christian Professionals Forum finances remain in a healthy state, 
there however, this year has been a tough year as we all know, due the global pandemic that affected 
operations everywhere.

We were not spared; we felt the pinch. Looking at our income that was generated in 2020, there was a 
decline compared to 2019, as from a surplus of Kshs. 4,797,976 (2019) to a deficit of Kshs. (1,902,964) 
(2020), This implies that there has been a reduction grant income from kshs.11,665,700 in 2019 to 
Kshs.4,704,665 (2020).

Analysing of our activities, there has been a reduction in Angaza fundraising of 49%, as from 6,774,530 
in 2019 to 3,077,700 in 2020, in governance we raised 294,000 as compared to 2019 where we raised 
895,000, we did not raise any amount for family, life and media as compared to 2019 where we raised 
400,500, and 1,331,255 and 400,000 respectively, for subscription there has been a decrease of 23,525, 
as compared to the 2019.

This was majorly driven by the impacts of Covid 19 which affected most of our activities. We were 
forced to look into our expenses and streamline our spend. Through that, we experienced a reduction 
in our annual expenditure. The 60% drop in the total income impacted us greatly, making us to cross 
over with a deficit.

MR. DANIEL MUIRURI
TREASURER
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     KENYA CHRISTIAN PROFESSIONALS FORUM 

 
(A company limited by guarantee and not having a share capital) 

 
Report of the directors 

For the year ended 31stDecember 2020 
 

The directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended 
31st December 2020, which disclose the state of affairs of the organisation.  

 
Principal activity 

 
The principle activities of the company are to develop a professional resource centre for churches 
and Para-church organizations, to create a moral voice in civil society to contend for the christian 
faith and counter secularism, to support the development of alternative media supportive of 
christian values in society, to influence school curriculum and training of the youth in the support 
for value creation and equitable human development processes and policies in Kenya, to train and 
equip leaders in support for enactment of moral values in all aspects of leadership in society and to 
influence value-based legislation, policy and governance in society 
 
Results 
 
The results for the year are set out on page 5 and the deficit of KShs 2,007,004, (2019: surplus of 
KShs 4,797,976) has been carried to the general fund. 

 
Dividends  

 
 The organisation is not for profit making and hence no dividend is payable. 
 

Directors 
 
The directors who held office during the year and to the date of this report are set out on page 1.  
 
Membership  

  
 The organisation had several members at the end of the year. 
 
 Auditor 
 

The auditor, Carr Stanyer Gitau & Co. Certified Public Accountants, who were appointed during the 
year under review, have expressed willingness to continue in office.  

  
               Nairobi, Kenya              by order of the board of directors 
 
 
 
 

_____________________ 2021                 _____________________ 
            Director 
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KENYA CHRISTIAN PROFESSIONALS FORUM 
 

(A company limited by guarantee and not having a share capital) 
 

Statement of the directors’ responsibilities 
For the year ended 31st December 2020 

 
The Kenyan Companies Act, 2015 requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial 
year that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company as at the end of the financial 
year and of its operating result for that year. It also requires the directors ensure that the company 
maintains proper accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the transactions of the 
company and disclose, with reasonable accuracy, the financial position of the company. The directors 
are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company, and for taking reasonable steps for 
the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 
 
The directors accept responsibility for the preparation and presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standard for Small and Medium sized - Entities and 
in the manner required by the Kenyan Companies Acts, 2015. They also accept responsibility for: 
 

i) Designing, implementing and maintaining such internal control as they determine necessary 
to enable the presentation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,  

ii) Selecting suitable accounting policies and applying them consistently; and 
iii) Making accounting estimates and judgments that are reasonable in the circumstances. 
 

Having made an assessment of the company’s ability to continue as a going concern, the directors are 
not aware of any material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast doubt upon the 
company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 
 
The directors acknowledge that the independent audit of the financial statements does not relieve 
them of their responsibilities. 
 
 
 
Approved by the directors on ________________________ 2021 and signed on their behalf by:- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                   _______________________     _____________________  
                                    Chairman                                Director   
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4(a) 
First Floor ACK Garden House 

First Ngong Avenue 
P.O. Box 40647 - 00100, GPO 

Nairobi, Kenya, 
Mobile: +254 733 573 639 

Email: csg@carrstanyergitau.com 
Website: www.carrstanyergitau.com                                       

Report of the independent auditor 
To the members of Kenya Christian Professionals Forum  

 
Opinion 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Kenya Christian Professionals Forum set on 
pages 5 to 12, which comprise the statement of financial position at 31st December 2020, the statement of 
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in fund balances and the statement of cash flows for the 
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of 
the Kenya Christian Professionals Forum for the year ended 31st December 2020 and of its financial 
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Reporting Financial 
Standard for small and medium sized entities and the requirements of the Kenya Companies Act, 2015. 
 
Basis of our opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities 
under those standards are further described in the ‘auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial 
statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the organisation which is consistent with the 
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA 
code), together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in 
Kenya, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. 

Other information 
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the report of the 
directors, which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, which is expected to be made 
available to us after that date. The other information does not include the financial statements and our 
auditor’s report thereon. 
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon.  
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 
If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of 
this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are 
required to report that fact.  We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements 
The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards for Small and Medium sized – Entities.  This 
responsibility includes:  designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
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Website: www.carrstanyergitau.com                                        

 

 

whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making 
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. 
 

Report of the independent auditor                                                   4(b) 
To the members of Centre for Kenya Christian Professionals Forum 

 
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 
of internal control.  

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the organisation’s internal control.  

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.  

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the organisation’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the organisation 
to cease to continue as a going concern. 

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 
 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 
 
We are also required to provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters 
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.                                                  
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                                                                                                                                                                                    4(c)  
Report of the independent auditor  

To the members of Centre for Kenya Christian Professionals Forum (Cont’d) 
 
Report on other legal requirements 
As required by the Kenya Companies Act, 2015 we report to you, based on our audit that:- 
 

(i) We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit. 

 
(ii) In our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the company, so far as appears 

from our examination of those books; and 
 
(iii) The company’s statement of financial position and income and expenditure statement are in 

agreement with the books of account.  
 

 
The engagement partner responsible for the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is  
CPA Charles R. Gitau –P.No 723 
 
 
 

                                        

 

                                                  2021                   CARR STANYER GITAU & CO. 
                                                                                              Certified Public Accountants 
 
 
 
                 Professional                                       Commitment                                                        Consistent 
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KENYA CHRISTIAN PROFESSIONALS FORUM 

 
(A company limited by guarantee and not having a share capital) 

 
Statement of comprehensive income  

For the year ended 31st December 2020 
  

  Note 2020 2019 
INCOME   KShs KShs 
 Income  3 4,704,665 11,665,700 
   ------------- -------------- 
EXPENDITURE    
Administrative expenses (Appendix I) 4,489,439 3,472,704 
Operating expenses (Appendix I) 2,222,230 3,395,020 
   ------------- ------------- 
   6,711,669 6,867,724 
   ------------- ------------ 
(Deficit)/surplus for the year  (2,007,004) 4,797,976 
   ========= ======== 
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KENYA CHRISTIAN PROFESSIONALS FORUM 
 

(A company limited by guarantee and not having a share capital) 
 

Statement of financial position at 31st December 2020 
 

 Note 2020 2019 
  KShs KShs 
NON-CURRENT ASSETS    
Property and equipment 4 906,152 1,045,548 
Intangible asset  139,500 - 
  --------------- --------------- 
  1,045,652 1,045,548 
CURRENT ASSETS    
Trade and other receivables 5 271,591 259,778 
Cash and cash equivalents 6 2,726,322 4,860,530 
  ------------- --------------- 
  2,997,913 5,120,308 
  ------------- --------------- 
CURRENT LIABILITIES    
Trade and other payables                                           7 142,896 58,183 
  ----------- ---------- 
    
NET ASSETS  2,855,017 5,062,125 
  ------------- -------------- 
  3,900,669 6,107,673 
  ======== ======== 
Represented by:-   
ACCUMULATED FUND  (page 7)  3,900,669 6,107,673 
  ======== ======== 

 
 
The financial statements set out on pages 5 to 12 were approved for issue by the board of directors 
  
 
On_____________________2021 and signed on its behalf by: - 

  
  
   
 
 
________________________       ________________________  
             Chairman                         Treasurer 
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KENYA CHRISTIAN PROFESSIONALS FORUM 

 
(A company limited by guarantee and not having a share capital) 

 
Statement of changes in fund balances 
For the year ended 31st December 2020 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

The General fund represents cumulative results realized from general operations over the years net of 
transfers. 
 
The prior year item refers to retained earnings that were understated in the income statement in 2019. 
The amount in the balance sheet was lower than what was stated in the note by the amount of KSh. 
200,000 

 

 General fund 
 KShs 
Balance at 1st January 2019 1,309,697 
  
Surplus for the year 4,797,976 
 -------------- 
Balance at 31st December 2019 6,107,673 
 ======== 
Balance at 1st January 2020 6,107,673 
Prior year item (200,000) 
Deficit for the year (2,007,004) 
 -------------- 
Balance at 31st December 2020 3,900,669 
 ========= 



52

AGM 2020 - 2021

 

 

 

 

KENYA CHRISTIAN PROFESSIONALS FORUM 
 

(A company limited by guarantee and not having a share capital) 
 

Statement of cash flows  
For the year ended 31st December 2020 

 
 2020 2019 
 KShs KShs 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES  
(Deficit) /surplus for the year (2,007,004) 4,797,976 
Adjustments for items not involving the movement of cash:-     
                           Depreciation 167,396 195,571 
                           Prior year item (200,000) - 
  ---------------  ------------- 
Operating surplus before working capital changes (2,039,608) 4,993,547 
  ---------------  ------------- 
(Increase) /decrease in receivables (11,813) 46,700 
Increase/ (decrease) in payables 84,713 (38,697) 
  ---------  ------------- 
Net cash flows from operating activities 72,900 5,001,551 
  ---------  ------------- 
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES  
Purchase of property and equipment (28,000) (99,127) 
Intangible assets (139,500) - 
  -------------  ----------- 
Net cash flows from investing activities    (167,500) (99,127) 
  -------------  ----------- 
   
Net(decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (2,134,208) 4,902,424 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 4,860,530 (41,894) 
  --------------  ------------- 
Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the year (note 6) 2,726,322 4,860,530 
  ========  ======== 
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KENYA CHRISTIAN PROFESSIONALS FORUM 

 
(A company limited by guarantee and not having a share capital) 

 
Notes to the financial statements 

For the year ended 31stDecember 2020 
 

1. GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Kenya Christian Professional Forum is incorporated in Kenya under the Kenyan Companies Act as a 
company limited by guarantee and not having a share capital, and is domiciled in Kenya.  

 
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and in compliance with the 
International Financial Reporting Standard for Small and Medium-sized Entities (IFRS for SMEs) 
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board. The measurement basis used is the 
historical cost basis. The financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings. 

 
Revenue recognition 
Income comprises donations, annual subscriptions, conference entry fees and registration fees. 
Income is recognized in the financial statements on the date received. 
 
Translation of foreign currencies 
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated initially into Kenya Shillings using the spot rate at 
the date of the transaction. Foreign currency monetary items at the balance sheet date are 
translated using the closing exchange rate. All exchange differences arising on settlement or 
translation are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income. 

 
Property and equipment 
Items of property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation. 
Depreciation is charged so as to allocate the cost of each asset less it’s residual values over its 
estimated useful live using the reducing balance method. The following annual rates are used for 
the depreciation of property and equipment: 

 
   Office equipment     12.5% 
   Furniture and fittings     12.5% 

Computers and accessories    30% 
 

If there is an indication that there has been a significant change in depreciation rate, useful life or 
residual value of an asset, the depreciation of that asset is revised respectively to reflect the new 
expectations.  
On disposal, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item 
sold is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income. 

 
Receivables 
Receivables are initially recognized at the transaction price. At the end of each reporting period, 
the carrying amounts of other receivables are reviewed to determine whether there is any objective 
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evidence that amounts are not recoverable.  If so, an impairment loss is recognized immediately in 
the statement of comprehensive income. 
 

KENYA CHRISTIAN PROFESSIONALS FORUM 
 

(A company limited by guarantee and not having a share capital) 
 

Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 31stDecember 2020 (Cont’d) 

  
Financial liabilities 
Financial liabilities are recognized at the transaction price. 

 
Retirement benefit obligations 
The company contributes to a statutory defined contribution pension scheme, the National Social 
Security Fund.  The contributions are determined by Kenyan statutes and the organisation’s 
contributions to the above scheme are charged to the income and expenditure account in the year 
to which they relate. 

 
 

 
3. GRANT INCOME 

 2020  2019  
 KShs KShs 
Family - 400,500 
Governance 294,000 895,000 
Life - 1,331,255 
Media - 400,000 
Angaza 3,077,700 6,774,530 
Subscriptions 171,000 194,525 
Secretariat and donations 1,043,214 1,669,890 
Interest received 118,751 - 
 ------------- --------------- 
 4,704,665 11,665,700 
 ======== ========= 
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11 
KENYA CHRISTIAN PROFESSIONALS FORUM 

 
(A company limited by guarantee and not having a share capital) 

 
Notes to the financial statements 

For the year ended 31stDecember 2020 (Cont’d) 
         
4. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

 

 
Furniture &  

Total Equipment Computers  
Cost KShs KShs KShs 
At 1st January 2019 1,285,789 446,963 1,732,752 
Acquisitions 25,650 73,477 99,127 
  -------------  -----------  -------------- 
At 31st December 2019         1,311,439  520,440 1,831,879 
 ------------- ------------  ------------- 
Depreciation    
At 1st January 2019 301,357 289,403 590,760 
Charge for the year 126,260 69,311 195,571 
 -----------  -----------  ----------- 
At 31st December 2019           427,617  358,714 786,331 
 ---------- ----------- ----------- 
Net book value at 31st December 
2019 883,822 161,726 1,045,548 
  =======  ======= ========  
Cost     
At 1st January 2020 1,311,439 520,440 1,831,879 
Additions - 28,000 28,000 
 -------------  -----------  ------------- 
At 31st December 2020 1,311,439 548,440 1,859,879 
  -------------  ----------- ------------- 
Depreciation    
At 1st January 2020 427,617            358,714         786,331 
Charge for the year 110,478               56,918               167,396 
  -----------  -----------  ----------- 
At 31st December 2020 538,095 415,632         953,727 
  ----------- -----------  ---------- 
Net book value at 31st December 
2020 773,344 132,808 906,152 
 ======= ======= ======= 
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12 
KENYA CHRISTIAN PROFESSIONALS FORUM 

 
(A company limited by guarantee and not having a share capital) 

 
Notes to the financial statements 

For the year ended 31st December 2020 (Cont’d) 
 

5. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES  
 2020 2019 

 KShs KShs 
Withholding tax 11,813 - 
Rent deposits  259,778 259,778 

 ----------- ----------- 
 271,591 259,778 

 ======= ======= 
   

6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 2020  2019  
 KShs KShs 
Cash at hand 168,170 245,288 
Co-op bank- KES 2,221,655 120,645 
Co-op bank- USD 37,666 188,866 
Fixed and call deposits 298,831 4,305,731 
 ------------- ------------- 
 2,726,322 4,860,530 
 ======== ======== 

 
7. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES  

 2020 2019 
 KShs KShs 
Don aweno 25,000 11,783 
Pro graphics limited 2,256 - 
Vigilant consultant limited 11,600 - 
Audit fees - 46,400 
Hensa solutions limited 104,040 - 
 ----------- ---------- 
 142,896 58,183 
 ======= ====== 

 
 
8. TAXATION 
 

The organisation derives its income from donations, annual subscriptions, conference entry 
fees and registration fees which are not taxable under the Income Tax Act. 
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9. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 
 

There was no capital commitment as at 31stDecember 2020 
Appe

ndix I   
KENYA CHRISTIAN PROFESSIONALS FORUM 

 
(A company limited by guarantee and not having a share capital) 

 
Schedule of operating expenditure 

For the year ended 31st December 2020 
 

1.   ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES 
 2020 2019 
  KShs   KShs  
Salaries and wages 2,447,577 1,822,201 
Office rent 665,488 765,600 
Printing and stationery 511,519 238,057 
Depreciation 167,396 195,571 
Audit fees - 46,400 
Computer and website 78,312 66,313 
Banking charges 26,968 23,580 
Office expenses 111,978 103,495 
Staff debtors - 13,043 
Accountancy fees 137,200 139,200 
Repairs and maintenance 53,800 17,977 
Telephone and postage 77,201 40,937 
Gifts and donations 212,000 330 
 ------------- ------------- 
 4,489,439 3,472,704 

 ======== ======== 
 
 
2.       OPERATING EXPENSES 

 2020 2019 
 KShs KShs 
Family 402,680 462,214 
Governance 841,001 1,020,227 
Life 111,474 1,130,283 
Media 3,123 - 
Religion 166,140 1,009 
Angaza dinner 267,885 627,518 
Secretariat 429,927 153,769 
 ------------- ------------- 
 2,222,230 3,395,020 
 ======== ======== 
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MINUTES TO THE LAST MEETINGS 

 
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 2020 
MINUTES 
Date: 18th June 2020 

Time: 1730hrs 
Location: Jumuia Place, Lenana Road at the NCCK Boardroom and Virtual (Zoom)  
 

ORGANISATION  
  KCPF 8th Annual General Meeting (AGM) 

 
 
 
ATTENDEES 

Present 
1. Mrs. Anne Mbugua 
2. Mr. Charles Kanjama 
3. Mr. Vincent Kimosop 
4. Mr. Daniel Muiruri 
5. Dr. Daniel Kiura 
6. Mrs. Alice Wainaina 
7. Ms. Margaret Nyagah 
8. Ms. Annette Matolo 
9. Canon Peter Gachuhi 
10. Ms Ann Mutave Kioko 

11. Mr. Lucas Owako  
12. Mr. Gerald Walterfang 
13. Dr. Wahome Ngare 
14. Ms. Esther Osiel 
15. Pst. Juliet Mahugu 
16. Bishop Daniel Kwesi 
17. Mr. Toluwalase Amondi 
18. Elizabeth Ngami (KCCB) 

 

 Apologies 
1. Dr Eliud Nthiga 

  

In attendance  
1. Mr. Godfrey Matolo 
2. Mrs. Patience Muthenya 
3. Mr. Daniel Nyagah 
4. Mr. Raphael Alwora 
5. Mr. Maina Kinyua 
6. Ms. Racheal Wambui 
7. Mr. Paley Njoroge. 
8. Mr. Maina Kinyua. 
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  AGENDA 

  AGENDA 
1. Introduction and opening prayers 

2. Reading of the notice convening the meeting 

3. Reading, confirmation and dealing with matters arising from Minutes of         
Previous meetings (2018 and 2019 AGM minutes) 

4. Receiving the Chairperson’s statement for the year ended 31st December 2019 

5. Receiving the Annual Report 2019/2020 

6. Reviewing and adoption of audited Financial Statements for the year 2019 

7. To appoint an Auditor for the next financial year 

8. Election of Directors 

9. Any other Business 

10. Adjournment 

  
 
MIN 1/18/06/2020: Introduction and opening prayers 
 

Opening  The meeting began at 5:25pm with word of prayer from Mrs. Anne Mbugua. 
Thereafter, the Board Secretary, Mr. Vincent Kimosop officially welcomed members 
to the AGM. The members present introduced themselves. 

 
MIN 2/18/06/2020: Reading of the notice convening the meeting  
 
Reading of the notice 
convening the meeting 

Mr. Vincent Kimosop (Board Secretary/Executive Director) read the Notice 
convening the AGM. 

 
MIN 3/18/06/2020: Review and adoption of the Financial Report 
 
Review and adoption 
of the Financial Report 

The Treasurer Mr. Daniel Muiruri led the members through the financial report. He 
noted that there was a general improvement in the KCPF income thanks to Angaza. 
There was a growth in the net surplus from -1.987M in 2018 to 4.8M in 2019 and 
growth of reserves from 1.4M 2018 to 6.1 M in 2019. There was also growth in 
program income from 5.9M to 11.7M 

Mr. Maina Kinyua the Auditor acknowledged the financial statements were done in 
International Financial Reporting standards and confirmed they were true and 
correct. 

There being no comments/questions, Mr. Charles Kanjama proposed the adoption 
of the Financial Report and seconded by Canon Peter Gachuhi.   
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Having done the audit for the organization for the past 8yrs the auditor requested 
to recant his earlier intention to continue being the auditor. The chairperson 
thanked him very much for the 8 years and allowed him to leave.  

 
MIN 4/18/06/2020: Reading and confirmation of the previous minutes 
 
Reading and 
confirmation of 
the previous 
minutes 

 Mr Vincent Kimosop led the members through the minutes.  

 Mr. Tollu Amondi noted his name was not included in the attendance list. He also 
suggested that the USD account number need to be included in the audit report. 

Mr. Charles kanjama noted that both the 2018 and 2019 minutes had members 
concern over the succession plan. He said the matter was discussed by the Board 
and a report would be given which will also include the Advisory Council, KCPF 
regional and Africa representation. The court cases were captured in the report. 

The minutes were proposed by Mr. Gerald Ole Walterfang and seconded by Dr. 
Daniel Kiura. 

 

 
MIN 5/18/06/2020: Chairperson Statement 
 

Chairperson 
Statement 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  The KCPF Chairperson Mrs. Ann Mbugua expressed her joy and gratitude to the 
Almighty Lord for being with KCPF since the start. She reminded the members how 
KCPF started from a humble beginning by Faith, walked by faith and have remained 
in united just like the Holy Trinity, God the Father, The Son and The Holy Spirit, all by 
Gods grace. She noted that KCPF is an institution that has its mandate from above 
to offer strategies to the church and sincerely appreciated our partners KCCB, NCCK 
and EAK for the support. 

As she confirmed her willingness to transition from being the Board chairperson to 
the Advisory Council, she expressed the need for KCPF to remain united. she indeed 
confessed that the KCPF journey hasn’t being smooth in that there have been many 
challenges but the Lord Has always provided in times of needs. She appreciated all 
the members for their sacrifices and called out the need to protect and guide KCPF 
because it represents a voice that is needed in the world. “KCPF is bigger than all of 
us and it’s a place for all”. She was very optimistic that despite the Covid-19 
pandemic and its effects, KCPF has what is needs; God and resources hence the 
need to continue soaring to grater heights. 

 

Reactions from the members: 
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 Mr Walterfang commended the chair for the great stewardship and emphasized on 
the need to remain united so as to fulfill the KCPF mandate. 

Pastor Juliet Mahugu appreciated the Chairperson for her great leadership and 
regretted she was leaving as the KCPF chair.  

 

 
MIN 6/27/06/2019: AGM report 

 AGM report 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Comments/Feedbac
k 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Mr. Vincent Kimosop led the members through the AGM report. He noted that the 
strategic plan was being implemented. The advisory council had been constituted 
and the proposed members had already accepted their appointments.  The terms 
of reference for the advisory council had also be finalized. He was also happy that 
this being the Covid-19 period, KCPF had launched a campaign to raise funds to help 
those effected. 

Under the life committee, KCPF was able to raise the voice on the ICPD25. Our 
outcry was heard by the US government and other prolife states who issued a 
statement that they were against the intentions of the ICPD25. He noted that the 
issue of teenage pregnancy was in the rise (needs to be addressed) and also the 
need to raise a voice on the Reproduction Health Bill 2019 that was in the Senate. 

Reactions from Members: 

� Mr. Gerald Ole Walterfang brought the idea of Mr. Wahome Ngare to lower the 
membership fee but not forget the quality of membership. 

� Pastor Juliet Mahugu appreciated the entire team for the good work but 
regretted that through the secretariat staff transition there was loss of the 
committee activeness.  

� Lucas Owako appreciated the KCPF Board and family for the good work. He 
emphasized the need to lower membership fee, have more numbers to 
advance the KCPF target. KCPF has great minds but needed numbers. 

� Mr. Charles Kanjama responded on the issues raised by the members 

1. Membership 

a. There is need to have broad categories on the types of 
membership. He promised that a general meeting was to be called 
later to talk about the membership issue. 

2. Advisory Council 

a. Ann Mbugua will be the Chairperson to the Advisory Council. The 
rules and operations will need a special general meeting. 
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3. KCPF succession Plan 

a. The Board of Directors had indeed reflected on the need to have a 
succession plan and noted in line with this, Mrs Ann Mbugua had 
decided not to seek reelection as the KCPF chairperson. The rest of 
the Board members will also follow the suit in years to come. 

b. On the committee transition plans were in place to reconstitute 
them so as to have new blood. The committees had taken a 
programmatic approach 

4. KCPF at 10 and Constitution of Kenya (CoK) Celebrations 

a. KCPF was formed after the 2010 referendum and promulgation of 
the new constitution. This year in august there were plans to have 
an anniversary of KCPF and CoK. The members were urged to give 
ideas to KCPF as plans were underway to celebrate both KCPF and 
the CoK reflecting on its implementation process. 

5. Regional and Continental Chapters 

a. KCPF is in the process of establishing itself at the grassroots levels. 

b. Ideas are in place to start regional (Nakuru, Mombasa, Kisumu, 
Eldoret etc.) and continental chapters. Africa Christian Professional 
Forum (ACPF) will be used to set the continental chapters. 

6. KCPF Partnership 

KCPF will continue its partnership with KCCB, NCCK, EAK among other 
Christians. 

Mr. Vincent Kimosop noted to Pastor Juliet Mahugu Concerns and promised to 
check on committees’ activities. 

There being no other matters arising the report was proposed by Lucas Owako and 
seconded by Tollu Amondi. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
MIN 7/18/06/2020: Giving the Board authority to appoint an Auditor for the next financial year 
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Giving the Board 
authority to appoint 
an Auditor for the 
next financial year 

The treasurer Mr. Daniel Muiruri noted that the process had already started but due 
to the outbreak of the Covid-19 pandemic, the process was put on hold. Various 
auditors had sent their proposals. He requested to be given mandate to appoint a 
new auditor and give a report in the next AGM. 

Mr. Charles Kanjama noted that the Board had agreed to have a new auditor and 
requested members to grant the Board more time to look for a new auditor. 

Dr. Wahome Ngare suggestion the appointment and renewal of the contract 
should be based on their performance.  

Dr. Wahome proposed and was seconded by Pastor Juliet Mahugu.   

 
MIN 8/18/06/2020: Election of Directors  
 

Election of Directors Mr. Vincent Kimosop explained that KCPF has 9 directors according to the Articles 
of Association and took the members through the election of the following 
directors: 

1. Mr. Charles Kanjama – He was proposed by Mr. Gerald Walterfang and 
seconded by Esther Osiel.   
Pastor Juliet Mahugu Congratulated and appreciated Mr. Kanjama. She 
requested him to market KCPF during his media engagements. 

2. Mr. Vincent Kimosop (Secretary) - He was proposed by Dr. Wahome Ngare 
and seconded by Pastor Juliet Mahugu.   

3.  Mr. Eliud Nthiga Evangelical Alliance (EAK) Board Representative - He was 
proposed by Mrs. Alice Wainaina and seconded by Ms. Ann Kioko. 
  

 
MIN 9/18/06/2020: Board Transition 
 



 

 
 

Board transition  Mr. Charles kanjama officially informed the members that the Chairperson Mrs Ann 
Mbugua was officially retiring from the Board of Directors. The Board has discussed 
the matter and felt that its important to have proportional representation. He 
proposed to have a representative from the NCCK affiliation and requested 
members to send their suggestions (including CVs). The board requested for time 
to search for the best replacement and will share the details with the members. 

Reactions from Members: 

 Mr. Gerald Walterfang Acknowledged and accepted the stepping down of Mrs Ann 
Mbugua as the KCPF Board chairperson. He seconded the Boards suggestions that 
on gender balance she be replaced by a lady. 

Canon Peter Gachuhi also accepted Mrs. Ann Mbugua request to step down as the 
Chairperson. He however noted that she wasn’t stepping down but was stepping 
up since she was going to the advisory council. He requested KCPF to grow consider 
growing its membership into the Board of Directors. 

Mrs. Alice Wainaina supported the idea of Mrs. Ann Mbugua joining the advisory 
council and emphasized the need to appreciate the role of the founders in guiding 
and supporting KCPF in achieving its mandate. 

Mr. Gerald Walterfang proposed that Mrs. Ann Mbugua steps down as the KCPF 
chairperson and was seconded by Canon Peter Gachuhi.  

REMARKS BY OUTGOING AND INCOMING LEADERSHIP 

1. Mrs. Ann Mbugua (Outgoing Chairperson) 

� She was very grateful to God and KCPF family for the 
overwhelming support they’ve have given her. She assured the 
members that the Board is even stronger as she vacates. Some of 
the KCPF founders were still in the Board including Mr. Charles   
Kanjama and Daniel Muiruri. She also acknowledged the other 
Board members who are very strong and passionate on KCPF 
matters. She promised even as she transitions to the Advisory 
Council, she’ll always be there to offer help. 

� Mr. Vincent Kimosop proposed that on the matters on transition 
and continuity of the Board, Mr. Charles Kanjama takes over as the 
new Chairperson and deputized by Mrs. Alice Wainaina. This was 
seconded by Mr. Lucas Owako who termed it as a good direction. 

� Mrs. Ann Mbugua on stepping down handed over some books to 
the new Chairperson and advised him that leadership should be 
people centered.  

 

 

65

AGM 2020 - 2021



 

 

66

AGM 2020 - 2021

 

 

2. Mrs. Alice Wainaina (Incoming Vice Chairperson) 

� She praised Mrs Ann Mbugua for her exemplary leadership over the years           
with a lot of energy. Mrs. Ann Mbugua has shown humility and power 
under control both in he words and deeds. She has been a selfless leader 
and prayed for Gods guidance even as she transitions to the Advisory 
Council. She also acknowledged Mr. Kanjama for his energy and support in 
achieving the KCPF mandate 

Mr. Charles Kanjama (Incoming Chairperson) 

He thanked our Lord God for the gift of KCPF. Lauded the members for their 
continued support and passion for KCPF. KCPF has produced champions who have 
continued to spread the KCPF agenda beyond the boarders like Ann Kioko. He 
noted that his role will be to oversee the transition of KCPF to the next phase. 
Mrs. Ann Mbugua has been a great inspiration to all and a perfect leader with 
integrity, commitment and stewardship. He promised to lead the KCPF Board will 
ensure that KCPF continues with its mission. Finally, he encouraged Mrs. Ann 
Mbugua to continue being the mother of KCPF  

 
MIN 10/18/06/2020: Adjournment 
 

Adjournment There being no other Business, the meeting ended at 7:58pm with a word of prayer 
from Canon Peter Gachuhi.  

 
 

MINUTES CONFIRMED BY; 

 
__________________________   _________________________ 
Chairperson   Secretary  
 
 
Date__________________________   ____________________________ 
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EXTRA ORDINARY GENERAL MEETING 2020 
MINUTES 
Date: 29th October 2020 

Time: 1730hrs 
Location: ZOOM  
 

ORGANISATION  
  KCPF EXTRA ORDINARY GENERAL MEETING 2020 

 
 
 
ATTENDEES 

Present 
 

1. Mr. Charles Kanjama 
2. Mr. Vincent Kimosop 
3. Dr. Daniel Kiura 
4. Mrs. Alice Wainaina 
5. Ms. Margaret Nyagah 
6. Ms. Annette Matolo 
7. Canon Peter Gachuhi 
 

 
8. Mr. Gerald Walterfang 
9. Dr. Wahome Ngare 
10. Ms. Esther Osiel 

 

 

 Apologies 
 

In attendance  
1. Mr. Godfrey Matolo 
2. Mrs. Patience Muthenya 
3. Mr. Daniel Nyagah 
4. Mr. Raphael Alwora 
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  AGENDA 

  AGENDA 
1. Introduction and opening prayers 
2. Reading of the notice convening the meeting 
3. To notice the quorums 
4. To appoint Carr Stanyer Gitau and Company as the new auditor for the 

financial year as proposed by the auditor 
5. To elect directors in accordance with the company’s articles of 

association 
6. To present the general report on the progress of KCPF version  
7. Special business 

a) To consider and if appropriate pass the following resolution 
b) To consider and if appropriate pass the following resolution 
c) To consider and if appropriate, pass the following resolution 

   8.Any other business 
a) Angaza fundraising 
b) Utumishi bora 

8. Adjournment 
 

 
 
MIN 1/29/10/2020 Introduction and opening prayers 
 

Opening  The meeting began at 4:23pm with word of prayer from Mr. Daniel Nyagah 
Thereafter, the Board Secretary, Mr. Vincent Kimosop officially welcomed 
members who introduced themselves. 

 
MIN 2/29/10/2020: Reading of the notice convening the meeting  
 

Reading of the 
notice convening 
the meeting 

Mr. Vincent Kimosop (Board Secretary/Executive Director) read the Notice 
convening the extra ordinary meeting. 

 
 
 
MIN 3/29/10/2020: To note the quorum 
 

Note the quorum The Chairperson Mr. Charles Kanjama, confirmed the quorum under the 
company’s act, which state a minimum of 2 members. Hence it was 
confirmed. 

 
MIN 4/29/10/2020: To appoint Carr stanyer Gitau and Company as the new auditor for the next 
financial year as proposed by the board 
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Consider and 
Appoint the new 
Auditor 

The Treasurer Mr. Daniel Muiruri Reported that they went through the 
process of recruiting the new auditor as mandated in the AGM. The 
advertisement was circulated to the public with the main requirement of the 
audit firm being registered with the ICPAK, practices good accounting 
standard, and has a Christian understanding of organization. Four audit firms 
were interviewed and, among the four, Carr Stanyer Gitau and company 
qualified to be the appointed new auditor for KCPF. 

Rueben Kamau, one of Carr Stanyer Gitau and company’s major partner, 
gave his remarks with a brief background history of the company, as a 
Christian Audit firm. 

Members proposed that carr stanyer Gitau and company be appointed as the 
new auditor based on its work and the expected input to KCPF. It was  
seconded by Pastor Esther Obasike. 

 

 

 
MIN 5/29/10/2020: To elect directors in accordance with the company’s articles of association 

 
To elect 
directors in 
accordance 
with the 
company’s 
articles of 
association 

Mr. Vincent Kimosop led the members through the minutes. It was noted 
that Mrs. Ann Mbugua retired on 18th June 2020 during the AGM. The process 
of recruiting a new Director was undertaken by the board which settled on 
Mrs. Dr. Linda Ochola Adolwa as the new Director to replace Mrs. Ann 
Mbugua in accordance to the articles of association. 

Mr. Kimosop read out the profile of the elected Director to the members and 
it was passed by voting. The members unanimously agreed that Mrs. Dr. 
Linda Ochola Adolwa be appointed as the new Board member. 

 On 21st September 2020, a letter of resignation from the Board was received 
from Ms. Annette Matolo who served as the NCCK representative. Mr. 
Anthony Ngachira was proposed by the NCCK as the new Board 
representative and subsequently appointed as the new director in 
accordance with the company articles of association. 

The profile was read to the members for confirmation of the appointment. 
Ms. Ann kioko proposed the appointment of Mr. Anthony Ngachira as the 
new Director and was seconded by Canon Peter Gachuhi.  

 
MIN 6/29/10/2020: To present the General report on the progress of KCPF Version 2.0 under 
the new leadership first 100 days 
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To present the 
general report on 
the progress of 
KCPF version 2.0 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  Mr. Vincent Kimosop presented the Special General Report on the progress 
of Version 2.0 initiatives to the members. 

During the 10th anniversary of KCPF, the new Chairperson launched new 
initiatives in addition to the existing ones that would run for the next decade. 
Vincent noted that KCPF version 2.0 will be a lab of ideas in line with the 
thematic areas.    

The initiatives include: 

� Annual state of life, family and faith report, 

� Christian counselling and dispute resolution centers 

� Africa journal of family, law and religion 

� Family and faith resources center 

� KCPF country chapters 

� Africa Christian Professionals’ forum. 

� Membership recruitment drive 

� 2020 KCPF fundraising campaign. 

Attached the general report handbook 

 

The members gave their comments, 

 Mrs. Judith Ongweno appreciated the team for the good work. 

Canon Peter Gachuhi emphasized on the need to get a toll  free Safaricom 
number for the purposes of call center 

 

 

 

 

 
MIN 7/29/10/2020 special business 
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Special business 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Racheal Wambui an advocate with Muma and Kanjama advocates led the members 
through the minutes.  

She read out and elaborated every proposed rules and regulation that need to be 
implemented as per the rules and regulations adopted by the Board on July 16th 
2015 be amended as recommended by the board. 

The chairperson gave more elaboration on the set of rules and regulation and 
thereafter asked the members for their input/contributions to the rules and 
regulations that had been highlighted. 

Attached is the copy of the proposed rules and regulations 2020, as annexure 1 to 
this resolution 

Reactions and comments from Members: 

Mr. Vincent Kimosop, reporting on behalf of the Advisory Council, went through 
the rules and regulations. 

The rules and regulations were approved by the members. 

Daniel Mwiruri proposed the regulation and rules to be adopted. He further stated 
that organization grow after having the right structures of governance in place. 

Ms. Kechy Aimba, appreciated the good work KCPF is doing and she seconded the 
proposed rules and regulations. 

Mr. Daniel Muiruri, appreciated the work done, and acknowledged the rules and 
regulation will help to accelerate the KCPF version 2.0. 

 
MIN 8/29/10/2020 Angaza fundraising dinner 
 
Angaza fundraising 
dinner 

 Mrs. Alice Wainaina led the members through the minutes. KCPF is celebrating 10 
years of Christian advocacy and influence in the area of life, family, governance, 
religion and value. 

She stated that Angaza seeks to accelerate the KCPF vision by; 

� Celebrating the past ten years; 

� Envision people towards next years; 

� Fundraising to put the vision into action. 

Members were urged to mobilize resources and bring as many people on board so 
that the vision can be achieved. 

 
MIN 9/29/10/2020 Utumishi Bora 
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Utumishi Bora Mr. Vincent Kimosop explained that members need to support the initiative, and 
people were encouraged to support through the KCPF website because for the 
organization to fight negative ethnicity need to do something good,  

The UBA awards was planned for 5th dec 2020. 

 

 
 

 
 
MIN 10/29/10/2020: Adjournment 

 
Adjournment There being no other bbusiness, the meeting was adjourned at 7:58pm with a word 

of prayer from Ms. Brigid  

 
 

MINUTES CONFIRMED BY; 

Charles Kanjama                Vincent Kimosop 

 

 
__________________________   _________________________ 

Chairperson   Secretary 
 
 
 
 

Date__________________________   ____________________________ 
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KCPF GOVERNANCE AND MEMBERSHIP CHARTER  

 KCPF LEADERSHIP STRUCTURE 

1.1 National Chapter
 

1.1.1 Advisory Council 
The advisory council is established as an advisory body to the Board of Directors. It consists of 9-15 
members, who are nominated and appointed by the board. The advisory council members serve for 
a term of three years, renewable once on application. 

1.1.2 Board of Directors 
The Board is responsible for the stewardship of KCPF and in discharging its obligations. The Board also 
assumes responsibility and retains full and effective control over KCPF and monitors the management 
in implementing the Board plans and strategies relating to KCPF. It’s headed by a chairperson and 
consists of 6 independent Directors and 3 representatives from the key partners (KCCB, NCCK and 
EAK). 

1.1.3 Committees 
Committees operate under the leadership of Conveners who are assisted by Co-Conveners and in 
guidance of the committee’s terms of reference. 

There are two categories 
1.1.4 Thematic 

These are Committees established based on the KCPF Strategic pillars of influence. They 
include 

1.1.5 Life 
1.1.6 Family 
1.1.7 Education 
1.1.8 Religion 
1.1.9 Governance 
1.2 Service 

These are committees established to support the work of the 5 major committees in fulfilling their 
mandate. They include: 

1.3 Angaza 
1.4 Membership Committee 
1.5 National Student Committee 
1.6 Social and Welfare 
1.7 Media 

 
1.7.1 Secretariat 

The National secretariat sits at the KCPF head office. The secretariat coordinates the work of the  
committees, executes and implement all the programs and program activities, including member 
engagements, and reports to the Board of Directors. The secretariat is headed by a Programme 
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Manager who attends meetings of the Board. 
 
 

1.8 Regional Chapters
 

1.8.1 Regional Board 
Each Regional chapter is headed by the regional Board of Management, as determined by the 
geographical location. The regional Board is responsible for the stewardship of the regional KCPF 
office  and in discharging its obligations. The Board operates under the guidance of the National Board 
of Directors and assumes responsibility of overseeing the implementation the strategies relating to 
KCPF regional chapters. 

Regional Committees 
The Committee are established based on the KCPF Strategic pillars of influence at the regional level. 
Each committee operates under the leadership of Conveners who are assisted by Co-Conveners and 
in guidance of the committee’s terms of reference. 

1.8.2 Secretariat 
The secretariat sits at the respective KCPF regional office. It coordinates the work of the committees,  
executes and implement all the regional programs and program activities, including member 
engagements, and reports to the regional Board of Management. The activities of the regional 
secretariat are also coordinated by the National Secretariat. 
 

This is the chapter that sits at the KCPF head office  in Nairobi. It coordinates the entire organization 
and the chapters established. It comprises of the KCPF Advisory Council, the Board of directors, 
Committees and the secretariat. The National Chapter manifests an ecumenical form as well as 
professional diversity in its membership. 

2.2      Regional Chapters 
These comprises of regional leadership and the paid up individual members from a specific 
geographical location in Kenya as a uniting factor, e.g. Counties etc. Regional Chapters also 
incorporate an ecumenical structure and professional diversity in their members. Regional Chapters 
shall remit 10% of the Annual membership revenue collected to the National Chapter Head Office.  
 

These chapters comprise of University and colleges students undertaking a professional training from 
an accredited institution of higher learning. Members of Student Chapters are recognized as Associate 
Members of KCPF. Student Chapters fall under a KCPF Youth Platform for members between 18-35 
years and are guided by the National Student Committee. 
 

These are chapters formed by paid up individual members sharing common attributes which includes 
profession, location, church etc. The chapter is comprised of small common interest group. 

2.5      Country Chapters 
KCPF in collaboration with Africa Christian Professionals Forum (ACPF) recognizes Country Chapters 
set up at national level in any other African or non-African Country and which are aligned to KCPF 
Values, Mission and Vision. A Country Chapter may also set up subordinate regional, student and 
special chapters. The Country Chapter operates under the ACPF and shall remit 10% of the Annual 

2.1 National Chapter 
2 Membership structure 

2.3 Student chapters 

2.4 Special Chapters 
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membership revenue collected to ACPF Head Office.  
 
 
 

3.1.1 Individual 
The Principal form of membership in KCPF is Individual membership. 
Individual members are divided into two categories, both of which comprise full and paid-up members: 

a. Guarantee Members 
b. Subscribed Members 

Induction to KCPF
   

3 Membership Requirements 
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To qualify as an Individual Member, one is required to meet the following requirements:

I.     A primary professional qualification or competence (Certificate, Diploma or Degree holders) earned
       from an accredited institution of Higher Learning in Kenya.
II.   Be a recognized professional practicing in any profession or recognized occupation in Kenya.
       Recognition may be through an approved professional body or certification by the KCPF Board.
III.  Possess a secondary professional qualification or competence in Leadership and Counseling, either ;

a. A certificate, diploma or degree earned from an accredited institution of higher learning, or

b. An alternative qualification or exhibited competence validated and verified by the KCPF Board.

IV.  Be a practicing Christian who upholds Biblical Christianity, ascribes to the Apostles Creed and
       affirms the KCPF Statement of Faith and Values.
V.   Have completed an induction Programme prescribed by the KCPF Board and demonstrate 
       commitment to KCPF Mission and Vision.
VI.  Have demonstrated the ability to Christianize the environment through witnessing, advocacy, 
       resourcing and networking.
VII. Attend an induction ceremony and pledge to promote KCPF Values as a faithful and diligent Christian
       Professional.
VIII. Pay the required registration and annual subscription fees.

KCPF shall hold a bi-annual induction/orientation Programme into the Organization. The orientation 
process entails:
I.    Application by the prospective member
II.   Vetting and confirmation of membership requirements
III.  Participation by candidate in a minimum number of prescribed KCPF events:

i. Attendance at one principal KCPF event (Ecumenical prayer breakfast, March for life, Family week

  or Utumishi Bora Awards)

ii. Participation in two committee meeting on KCPF thematic areas (Life, Family, Education, Religion

    or Governance)

iii. Attendance in two KCPF trainings or seminars

IV.   Successful completion of KCPF induction project relating to transformation through Christianizing
        and/or professionalizing the environment (Work place, Church, Local 



 

 

 
 

Special member categories
  
 

Apart from subscribed Individual Members who are recognized as full members of KCPF, there are 
special categories of persons who may be recognized as enjoying some of the benefits of membership 
without full recognition and qualification as members. 

5.1.1 Corporate 
Corporate members are corporate entities or associations of persons that have paid the one-off 

registration fee as well as the annual subscription fee and are admitted as corporate members of KCPF 
after signing the statement of faith & values and the membership pledge subject to the KCPF 
Membership Regulations. 

5.1.2 Associate 
Associate Member means any individual person professing the Christian faith and associating with 
KCPF as friends of KCPF but shall not be subscribed members and may include student members. The 
member must subscribe to the KCPFs Statement of Faith. Associate Members are not required to pay 
membership fee. 

5.1.3 Student 
Student member means an associate member who is undergoing academic or professional training 
in an institution of Higher learning and who desires to be associated with KCPF and ascribes to its 
values. 
 

Validity of the Charter
  
The Charter shall be revised after every five years. 
 
 
 
 
Signed 
 
 
 
 
CHAIRMAN                                                    SECRETARY 
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Community or other organization or association).
V. Member proclamation of the KCPF Statement of Faith.
VI. Attending an induction ceremony.
VII. Awarding of Membership and Leadership competence certificate to the new member.
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STATEMENT OF FAITH, STATEMENT OF VALUES AND CODE OF CONDUCT 

KCPF is guided by the following:

 1. Biblical Christianity with commitment and obedience to the teaching of Jesus Christ, the Son of God
    (Sermon on the Mount, Matthew 5-7); 
2. KCPF is ecumenical and believes in the unity of the body of Christ(John 17:21); 
3. Sanctity of life from conception to natural death(John 10:10); 
4. Upholding the natural family as the building block of society and as established by God. (Matthew 19:4-6); 
5. Promotion of values-based education of children and the right of parents to remain the authority over 
    their children’s lives before they reach the age of majority (Proverbs 22:6); 
6. Freedom of religion and religious practice including freedom to change religion, freedom for any religion
    or denomination to establish, manage and operate their own institutions without undue interference. 
    And support for the Christian religion (Great Commission, Matthew 28:19-20); and 
7. Good governance of the state, local communities and organisations, good citizenship and social justice
    with respect to honor for human dignity, equality, and the realization of human potential(Isaiah 1:17;
    Matthew 22: 39;) 

Statement Of Values 
At KCPF, we know just how important it is to have a Christian professional outlook in supporting the Church 
to promote and defend biblical values through research, advocacy, mentorship and witnessing. We also do 
know how challenging this can be, to stand firm and strong in our values. Our resources are devoted towards 
promoting and protecting life and the family. 

We further defend and promote religious freedom in Kenya, that gives a voice to the diverse Christian 
denominations in Kenya. 

Our Mission is to empower the Christian professional workforce in giving it a voice and recognition in advo-
cating for good governance practices, leadership and integrity in Kenya. 

We, with the committees in place, continuously engage the government, other professional bodies and the 
public in governance. 

Finally, we advocate for a values-based education system with Christian values in health, life and family, to 
shape the morals and values of the society, and for a desirous living. 

Code of Conduct 
If admitted as a member of KCPF I covenant to act in compliance with the following Code of Conduct: 

1. To conduct myself with honesty, professionalism and integrity in my interactions with KCPF and as a
    Christian professional in my field of qualification; 
2. Not to advance any personal interest or engage in any activities or associations that conflict or have the
    potential of conflicting with KCPF’s Statement of Faith and Values; 
3. To support KCPF in fulfilling its mission and objectives financially, in advocacy, mentorship, witnessing
    and any other form of empowerment and support to KCPF; and 
4. Agree to subject myself to the accountability put in place by KCPF as well as the complaint mechanism
    review and dispute resolution processes. 



 Program for Family Development 
 Tanari Trust 
 Voice of the Family in Africa 
 African Christian Camping 

 

 

 
KCPF’s strength and ability to achieve its mandate is based on its partnerships and consortiums.  

 MAIN PARTNERS 

a) KENYA CONFERENCE OF CATHOLIC BISHOPS (KCCB); has continued to partner with us, 
notably, in planning and executing 2018 March for Life. 2018 was a unique year as KCCB 
celebrated 50 years of Humanae Vitae which is a campaign for protecting the dignity of 
Human Life.  

b) NATIONAL COUNCIL OF CHURCHES OF KENYA (NCCK); has championed the agenda of KCPF, 
freely offering resources and technical support as well as involving us in matters affecting 
national values.   

c) EVANGELICAL ALLIANCE OF KENYA (EAK); has been in the frontline in attending, supporting 
and hosting KCPF activities.  

INTERNATIONAL/REGIONAL PARTNERS 

a) World Congress of Families 

b) Family Watch International 

c) Empowered Youth Coalition  

d) The Ruth Institute  

e) Citizen Go 

f) Foundation for African Cultural Heritage 

NATIONAL PARTNERS 

a) Ministry of Labour & Social Protection, Kenya 

THE LINDA UHAI CONSORTIUM 

 Pearls & Treasures Trust 
 Little Angels Network 
 Protecting Life Movement Trust 
 World Youth Alliance 
 Abstinence Kenya 
 Human Life International 
 Mother & Child TV 
 East Africa Centre for Law & Justice 

NATIONAL FAMILY CONSORTIUM 

 Pearls & Treasures Trust 
 World Youth Alliance 
 International Justice Mission 
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OUR PARTNERS
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KCPF PICTORIALS

10. REPRODUCTIVE HEALTH CARE BILL



  

KCPF
Kenya Christian Professionals Forum


